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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,

The members of BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion ‘

We have audited the financial statements of BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Company as at March 31, 2021, and its Loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 37 to the financial statement which explains that the extent to which

COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company's operations and financial results is dependent on
future developments, which are highly uncertain.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report is expected to be made available to us after this auditor's
report. :

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 111f01mat1011 aud we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. LT e e
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

CITor.

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from f{raud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of
Directors. ‘

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged
with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matlers specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to
be examined in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the Act, the compliances of
which is set out in the Annexure “B”.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure “C”,
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 34 to the financial statements;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR ASL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Regn. No 101921 W)

(Kapil Kumar Joshi)
PARTNER

Membership No. : 137334
PLACE: - MUMBALI. UDIN: 21137334AAAABJ1843

DATED: -May 11, 2021
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Annexure “A” referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Reguirements” of the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the
Financial Statements of BOB Financial Soluctions Limited for the Year Ended 31%' March
2021.

On the basis of such checks as considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we state as under. Matters specified in clauses
(D)(e), (i) (@) b)(c),(vi),(ix),(xi),(xii) & (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 do not apply to the Company. Accordingly no comments have been made on the
matters not applicable to the company.

(i)
(2) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed Assets.

(b)) As per the information and explanations given to us, fixed assets have been physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification
and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(ii ) As per the information and explanations given to us, the inventory has been physically
verified by the management during the year at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stock and the book records were not material and the
same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(iii ) As per information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
secured or unsecured loans to the companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

(iv ) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
respect of Investments made during the year under review, the company has compiied
with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) As per information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act 2013
and Rules made there under.

(vi)
(a) As per the records of the Company and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance,

income tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and

other statutory dues, to the extent applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us , there are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, {2021 for a period of more
than 6 months from the date they became payable. :
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us , there are no of dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs and duty of excise duty, value added tax as at March 31, 2021 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute.

(vii ) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given
to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in payment of dues to
its bank.

(vili )  As per information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by the
company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year under review.

(ix ) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records, the Company is in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(x) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. However, during the year company has issued following
Fixed Rate, Unsecured, Rated, Taxable, Redeemable Listed Non- Convertible
Debentures having face value of 3. 10 Lakhs for each debenture and based on our
examination of the records of the company, requirement of Section 42 of Companies
Act, 2013 has been complied with and the amount raised has been used for the purpose
for which the funds were raised.

Date of Issue | Rate of interest Nature Amount of
of Offer letter debentures
(In%)
09-03-2021 7.65% Subordinate Tier II 50,00,00,000/-
(xi ) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated 23 October 1999.

FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Regn. No 101921 W)

\K&‘}m &5 Lo &3

SRR (Kapil Kumar Joshi)
T PARTNER
Membership No. : 137334
PLACE: - MUMBALI. UDIN: 21137334AAAABJ1843

DATED: - May 11, 2021
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the Financial Statements

of BOB Financial Solutions Limited for the Year Ended 31 March 2021,

Directions under section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013

We have examined the books of accounts of the BOB Financial Solutions Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2021 and we are submitting our comments and answers to the questions asked in
the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, according to the best of our
information and explanations given to us by the management and as appears from the examination
of the books of accounts and records produced before us by the Company, which are as under.

S. Directions
No.

Reply

1. | Whether the company has system in place
to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If no, the implications
of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated.

As per the information and explanation given to
us and based on the examination of records on
the test check basis , the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting transaction
through IT system.

2. | Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off
of debts /loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to the
company’s inability to repay the loan? If
yes, the financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is
Government company, then its direction
is also applicable for statutory auditor of
lender company).

are

Based on our audit procedures and on the basis
of information and explanations given to us, no
restructuring of any existing loan facility and no
case waiver/write off from the Company’s lender
in respect of loan facility during the year under
review reported.

3. | Whether funds (grant/subsidy etc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/ State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation.

As per information & explanation given to us and
the records produced before us, no funds
(grant/subsidy etc.) received/ receivable for
specific ~ schemes  from  Central/  State
Government or its agencies during the year under
review. Reimbursement received under the
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“Scheme for grant of ex-gratia payment of
difference between compound interest and simple
interest for six months to borrowers in specified
loan accounts (1.3.2020 to 31.8.2020)” is not
considered as Grant / subsidy for this purpose not
considered as Grant / subsidy for this purpose.

FOR ASL & CO.
/;ff"._ T Chartered Accountants

(Regn. No 101921 W)
s ;&@“”

(Kapil Kumar Joshi)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 137334

PLACE: - MUMBAL UDIN: 21137334AAAABJ1843
DATED: - May 11, 2021 '
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Annecxure “C” to the Independent Auditor’s Report Of Even Date on the Financial
Statements of BOB Financial Solutions Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BOB Financial
Solutions Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to the financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. )

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements and, both issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements were established and maintained and
whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.

Qur audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the

financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial
Statements '

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal {inancial controls to with reference the financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, the company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control with reference to the financial
statements criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

‘ FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Regn. No 101921 W)

(Kapil Kumar Joshi)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 137334
PLACE: - MUMBAL UDIN: 21137334AAAABJ1843

DATED: - May 11, 2021
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To,

Compliance Certificate

The Principal Director of Audit (Shfpping)

- Plot No. C-2, G.N. Block,
6 & 7 Floor, Near Asian Heart Inst.,
Bandra-Kurla Comlex, Bandra (E),

Mumbai - 400 001

We have conducted the audit accounts of BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
for the year ended as on 31 March 2021 in accordance with the directions/sub-directions issued

by the C&AG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that all the
directions/sub-direetions, as applicable to the Company, have been complied with.

PLACE: - MUMBAI

DATED: - May 11, 2021

FOR ASL & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Regn. No 101921 W)

(Kapil Kumar Joshi)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 137334

UDIN: 21137334AAAABK3878
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CIN: U65980MH1994G0I081616

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021

(Figure in Rupees in millions, unfess otherwise stated)
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Particulars Notes As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
| ASSETS

1 Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 158.84 132.59 260.64
Trade receivables 5 363.91 446.13 637.75
Loans 6 7.430.30 3,982.16 2,579.57
Investments 7 - - -
Other finangial assets B 142.51 65.99 169.53

2 Non-financial assets
Inventories 1.00 10.08 10.81
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 441.86 238.43 164.85
Property, plant and equipment 10 127.00 247.75 380.47
Right-of-use assets 11 81.28 65.44 105.64
Other intangible assets 12 29.37 1¢.66 12.11
Intangible assets under development 19.91 - 0.93
Other non-financial assets i3 675.52 416.92 183.43
Total assets 9,471.49 5,616.15 4,495.74

Il LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

1 Financial liabilities
Payables
Trade Payables 14
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 1.688 0.44 0.83
small enterprises
(it) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 70.54 15277 67.03
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 15 4,064.28 - -
Borrowings {(cther than debt securities) 16 2,584.65 2,803.53 1,099.36
Other financial liabilities 17 170.58 201.84 587.08

2 Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 18 438.27 334.60 219.27
Other non-financial liabilities 19 230.97 117.84 81.67
Total liabilities 7,5660.98 3,611.02 2,055.24
Equity
Equity share capital 20 1,750.00 1,750.00 1,750.00
Other equity 21 160.51 255.14 680.50
Total equity 1,910.51 2,005.14 2,440.50
Total labilities and equity 9,471.49 5,616.15 4,495.74

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the 1-52 )

financial statements

As per our report of even date
For ASL & Co.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration No. 101921W]

Kapi r Joshi
Partner
(Membership No. 137334)

Place: Mumbal
Date: 11th May 2021,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
OB Financial Sojutions Limited (7

Sanjiv Chadha  Vikramaditya S Khichi Shailendra Singh

Chairman Director Managing Director & CEOQ
(DIN:08368448) {DIN:08317894) {DIN: 08751442)

Deepash(dr'nelius

Company Secretary
(PAN;BVLPS3134E)

Pooja Kprnani
Chief Fifancial Officer
(PaN:AHEPB7049P)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11th May 2021,
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BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
CIN: U65930MH1994G 01081616

Statement of Proflt and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended Forthe year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from operations
(i) Interestincome 22 1,101.39 839.66
(i} Income from fees and services 23 2,284.82 2,172.32
{iiil) Income from Consultancy 114.48 117.51
(iv) Business development incentives 28.19 15.09
{1 Total revenue from operations 3,528.87 3,144.56
Other income 24 133.82 112.15
{n Total Income (I + 1) 3,662.69 3,256.71
Expenses
{iy Finance gost 25 279.80 161.83
{i} Impairment on financial instruments 26 852.83 482.63
(lity Employee benefit expenses 27 585.00 506,41
(iv) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 1011&12 169.76 194.08
{v) Other expenses 28 2,000.63 2,419,290
(vi) Corporate social responsibility expenses - 4.58
(v} Total expenses {IV) 3,888.03 3,768.81
{V) Profit/{loss) for the period {IlI-1V) {225.34) (512.09)
Tax Expense: 30
(a) Current tax 74,68 -
(b) Deferred tax (credit) {204.00) (81.58)
(c) Income tax for earlier year - -
{vi1) Total Tax expense (129.32) {81.58)
Profiti(loss} for the year (V - VI) {96.01) {430.51)
{vit) Other comprehensive income
A Items that wili not be reclassified to profit or loss
* Remeasurement gain/{loss) on defined benefit plan 1.96 (6.84)
Income tax impact {0.57) 1.99
Total (A) 1.39 {4.85)
B Items that will be classified to profit or loss
Reclassification adjustments to statement of profit and - -
Ioss
Income tax impact - -
Total (B) - -
Cther comprehensive income {A + B) 1.39 {4.85)
{vii Total comprehensive income for the year (94.62) {435.36)
(1X) Earnings per equity share
Basic {Rs.) 29 (0.54) {2.49)
Giluted (Rs.) {0.54) (2.49)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 1-52
statements

As per our report of even date
For ASL & Co.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Reg]stration No. 101921W]

Kal r Joshi
Partner
(Membership No. 137334)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11th May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W=

a
Vikramaditya S Khichl Shailendra Singh
Director

Managing Director & CEQ
(DIN:0B317894) (DIN: 08751442)

.

Sanjiv Chadha
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BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

CiN: U65990MH1984GOI087616

Cash Flow statement for the period ended March 31, 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

ba

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Operating activities
Profit before tax (225.34) {512.09)
Adjustments to réconcie profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation & amortisation 169.76 194,08
Impairment on financial instruments 852.83 482.63
Profit on sale of fixed assets (0.77) (0.22)
Write off of fixed assets 2.74 0.74
Interest on lease liabilities 7.34 7.48
Income from mutual fund (4.47) {0.79)
Finance cost 272.46 154.33
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,074.55 326.17
Working capltal changes
(Decrease) Increase in trade payables (80.97) 85.34
{Decrease)/ Increase in other financial liabilities (31.28) (385.24)
{Decrease)/ Increase in other non financial liabilities 113.13 36.17
(Decrease)/ Increase in provisions ‘ 105,63 108.49
(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial assets loans {4,300.97) {1,885.22)
(Increase) Decrease in Other financial assets (76.53) 103.54
(Increase} Decrease in Inventory 9.08 0.73
{Increase)/ Decrease in other non financial assetls (242.58) (233.49)
{Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 82.22 191.62
Income 1ax paid {134.70) -
Net cash flows from/{used in) operating activities (4,567.25) (1,978.06)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment {PPE" including intangible assets (62.07) (19.86)
Sale proceeds from PPE 0.96 0.55
Purchase of Investments (7,449.63) {3,480.00)
Sale Proceed from Investments 7,454.10 3,480.79
Net cash flows from/{used in) Investing activities (56.65) (18.51)
Financing activities
Proceeds from debt securities . 4,064.28 -
Proceeds from borrowings other than debt securities - 1,704.17
Repayment of borrowings other than debt securities (218.88) -
Interest on lease liabilities {7.34) (7.49)
Interest paid {272.46) {154.33)
Net cash generated/{used in) financing activities 3,565.60 1,542.35
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 26.25 {128.05)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year - 132.59 260.64
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 158.84 132,59

Note:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the *Indirect Method” as set out in Indian accounting standard {Ind AS)-7 -'Cash
Flow Statements’ nofified under Secticn 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment

Ruies, 2016.

2. Component of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in *Note 4: Cash and cash equivalent'

As per our repert of even date
For ASL & Co.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration MNo. 101921W]
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BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

CIN: U65930MH1994GOI081616

Statement of changes in equity

(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share capital

Particular Number of shares Amount
Batlance as at 1 April 2019 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Chages in equity share capital - -
during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2020 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Chages in equity share capital - -
during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2021 17,50,00,000 1,750.00

B. Other Equity

e

Particular Reserves and Surplus Total
Statutory Reserve | Retained Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2019 352.17 338.32 680.50
Add: Loss for the year -
"Add: Other comprehensive - (4.85) (4.85)
income

Transfer to/from retained - (430.51) (430.51)
earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2020 352.17 (97.04) 255.14
Add: Loss for the year -

Add: Other comprehensive - 1.39 1.39
income

Transfer toffrom retained - (96.01) (96.01)
earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2021 35217 (191.66) 160.51

As per our report of even date

For ASL & Co.

Chartered Accountants

[Firm Registration No. 101921W]

&

Kapil'Kumar Joshi
Partner
(Membership No. 137334)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11th May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

BOB Financial Solutions Limited
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BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Accounting Policies
Note 1: Corporate Information

BOB Financial Solutions Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda and a Non-Deposit
accepting Systemically Important Non-Banking Finance Company (“NBFC-ND-SI”), holding a
Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). The Company is engaged in the
business of issuing credit cards to consumers in India. It also provides support to Bank of Baroda by
carrying out its merchant acquiring operations and manpower/consuitancy services. Until December
2020, the Company was also supporting Bank of Baroda's overseas territory subsidiaries/sponsored
RRB’s for their Debit Cards operation, however all activities reiating to these have been now
transferred to respective overseas territory subsidiaries/ sponsared RRB's.

During the year ended March 2021, Company has issued 11 tranches of listed Commercial Papers
which are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). This was first ever listed issuance by the Company.

Note 2: Basis of preparation and presentation
a. Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {“Ind AS”} notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
{amendments) Rules, 2016 and as amended from time to time. Any application guidance/
clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other reguiators are implemented as and when they are
issued/ applicable.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 are the first the Company has prepared
under Ind AS. For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Company
prepared its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India
(“Indian GAAP"), in compliance with all material aspects of the accounting standards notified under
the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
{Accounts} Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP), the provisions of the RBI as applicable to a
NBFC-ND and accounting principles generally accepted in India. The financial statements for the year
ended 31st March 2020 and the opening Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2019 have been restated in
accordance with Ind AS for comparative information. Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of
the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the Company’s Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss and Statement of Cash Flows are provided in note 43.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are
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significant to the Company are discussed in Note 3 - Significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions.

b. Basis‘ of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS)
on the basis of Going Concern concept and under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, and in accordance with the accounting policies set out below which are in conformity with Ind
As. These policies have been consistently applied throughout the year.

¢. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is the Company’s functicnal and
presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in miilions and rounded off to the nearest
two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

d. Presentation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company are presented in order of liquidity and as per Division 11l of
the Schedule IIl to of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs {MCA). An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non—current} is presented
in Note 32- Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to
settle on a net basis in the following circumstances:
i. The normal course of business
ii. The event of default
ii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

e. Statement of Compliance
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 as amended and notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

Note 3: Significant accounting policies
3.1. Revenue from operations

The Company's operating revenues are comprised principally of service revenues such as interest
income on financial assets i.e. Overdue credit card outstanding/EMI balances, fee earned, target
incentive offered by network partner, service charges from merchant establishment, rental income
from machines deployed, income from consultancy services etc. Other fee and charges include cheque
bounce charge, late fees, over limit fees etc.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payments and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
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Government. Revenue Is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being madeﬁ.

Revenue includes the following:
a) Interest Income

Interest income includes interest income on overdues from credit card holders and on EMI based
advances.

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, excluding those classified as held for trading
or designated at fair value are recognised in ‘Interest income’ and ‘Finance expense’ in the statement
of profit and loss using the effective interest rate method. In view of uncertainty of realization of
income in case of credit impaired assets, such income is accounted for only on receipt basis. Recovery
from impaired debts written off is recognised as income based on actual realisations from customers

b} Income from fees and services

The Company selis credit card membership to card holders, income earned from the provision of
membership services is recognised as revenue over the period for which services are provided, net of
reversals/ cancellations.

Revenue from interchange income is recognised when related transaction occurs, or service is
rendered. Other service revenue consists of value-add services provided to the card holders. These
other service revenhues are recognised in the same period in which related transactions occur or
services are rendered as revenue is accrued at the point of sale for these services.

c) Service charges from merchant establishment

All service charges in the form of commissions (MDR), support fee and POS rental related to merchant
operations are recognised in the same period in which related transactions occurs or services are
rendered as revenue is accrued at the point of sale for these services.

d) Other Income

All other income including income from debit card, consultancy services are recognised in the same
period in which related transactions occurs or services rendered at fair value of consideration net off
expected reversals/ cancellations as revenue is accrued at the point of sale. Income from debit card
operations consist of income from overseas territory subsidiaries/sponsored RRB’s of parent Company
for supporting their debit Cards operations.

e} Business Development Incentive

The Company enters into long-term contracts with network partners for various programs designed
to build payments volume, increase product acceptance. Revenue recognition is based on estimated
performance and the terms of the business arrangements.
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f) Unidentified receipts/ old balances & Stale cheques

The total unidentified receipts which could not be credited or adjusted in the customers’ accounts for
lack of complete & correct information is considered as liability in balance sheet. The estimated
unidentified receipts/ old balances aged up to 3 years is written back as income on balance sheet date.
The liability for stale cheques aged for more than three years is written back as income.

g) Income from Investments

Excess of sale price over purchase price of mutual fund units is recognised as income at the time of
sale.

3.2 Expenditure
Expenses are recognised on accrual basis.

a) The incremental cost of acquiring a customer is recognised in the profit and loss statement over the
behavioural life of the customer

b) Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Any expenditure which is directly attributable to borrowing is capitalized and
amortised over the life of borrowing loan.

3.2.1 Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term emplovee benefit

All employee benefits including short term compensated absences and statutory bonus/ performance
bonus/incentives payable wholly within twelve months of the end of the period in which the
employees render the related services are recognised in respect of employee service upto the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution schemes

Retirement/ Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution
plan. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. The Company’s contributions to the above Plan are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Defined Benefit schemes

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity to all employees. The benefit is in the form of lump sum payments
to vested employees on resignation, retirement, or death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary payable for each completed year of
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service as required under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972’. Vesting occurs upon completion of five
years of service,

The present vaiue of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
The discount rates used for determining the present value of the -obligation under defined benefit
plan, are based on the market yields of Government bonds as on the valuation date.

The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method on the balance sheet date. The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of
the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/ (liability)
in the books. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. the Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
nonroutine settlements

Net interest expense or income remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.”

Leave encashment

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absence and deferred compensation as
per the policy of the Company, the liability in respect of which is provided, based on an actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the year end. The actuarial valuation method
used by the independent actuary for measuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in the actuarial
assumptions are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they

arise.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. Unutilised leave balance that
accrues to employees as at the year-end is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an
undiscounted basis.

National pension scheme {NPS) The Company makes contributions to National Pension System {NPS),
for qualifying employees. Under the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the payroll costs to NPS. The contributions payable to NPS by the Company are at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes. The share of Companies contribution is charged to profit and
loss account.




3.2.2 Other expenses

All Other expenses are recognized in the period they occur.
3.2.3 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Current / Deferred tax is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination
or to an item which is recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case
the related income tax is also recognised accordingly. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority. The Company only off-sets its deferred tax assets against liabilities when
there is both a legal right to offset and it is the Company’s intention to settle on a net basis.

i) Current Taxes

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable/ receivable in respect of taxable profit/ loss for a
period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws. Current tax assets and liahilities
for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid
to, the taxation authorities. Interest income / expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are
included in current tax expense. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of reporting date in India where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

ii) Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwil! or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

2. Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end
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of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except when the
deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable proflt will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to'be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income tax benefits or expenses in the Statement of
profit and loss except for tax related to the fair value re-measurement of financial assets classified
through other comprehensive income, foreign exchange differences and the net movement on cash
flow hedges, which are charged or credited to Other Comprehensive Income {OCl). These exceptions
are subsequently reclassified from OCl to the statement of profit and loss together with the respective
deferred loss or gain. The Company also recognises the tax consequences of payments and issuing
costs, related to financia! instruments that are classified as equity, directly in equity. '

3.3. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

3.3.1 Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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3.3.2 Initial measurement

The classification of financiai instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their
fair value,

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and presented on net basis in the halance sheet
when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended
to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.3.3 Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial instruments
1. Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets ta be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

These financial assets comprise of bank balances, overdue credit card outstanding/EMI balances,
trade receivables, and other financial assets.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) if
these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

if} Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of
principat and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding; and

b} Are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.
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Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income within
a separate component of equity. Impairment losses or reversals, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income {except for investment in equity shares) is
reclassified from equity to the income statement.

iif) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss:

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOC], are
measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. ’ :

items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

a} Investments (including equity shares) and stock in trade held for trading;

b) Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and

¢} Debtinstruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value and any gains or [osses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
they arise.

2._Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of 2 financial
liability and an equity instrument.

2.1 Financial Liabilities

i} Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR. (Effective Interest Rate)

ii) Undrawn credit limits on cards:

Undrawn credit limits on cards are commitments which the Company is required to pay on behalf of
the customer based on pre-specified terms with the customer. Undrawn credit limits on cards
commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

2.2. Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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3.3.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business
line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

3.3.5 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

1. Derecognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company transfers the financial asset if, and only if, either:

i} The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset,
or ‘

i} It retains the rights to the cash flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in fuill without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
i) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

ii) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and
has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

2. Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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3.3.6 Impairment of financial assets

1. Overview of the ECL principles

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk

exposure,

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
- Undrawn credit limits

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 10S.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss. Lifetime ECLs are the
expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis,
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company’s policy
for grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis is explained in Note 41.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument.

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans & advances into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3
as described below by comparing the credit risk of the financial instrument as at the reporting date,
with its credit risk as at the date of initial recognition.

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

All exposures that are not credit impaired and where there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit
impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. Exposures with days past due (OPD) less than
or equal to 30 days are classified as stage 1.

For these assets, 12-month ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying
amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance).
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Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

Far credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that are not credit impaired, are classified under this stage.

Exposures with DPD greater than 30 days but less than or equal to 89 days are classified as stage 2.
For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognized, but interest revenue is still calculated on the gross
carrying amount of the asset.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

Financial asset is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.

For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised on principal
outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD equal to or more than 90 days are classifted as stage
3.

2. The calculation of ECL

The Company calculates ECL based on a probability weighted approach to measure the expected cash
shortfalls. A cash shortfali is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. The concept of PD is further
explained in Note 41: Risk Management. '

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, expected drawdowns, and accrued interest from missed payments. The concept
of EAD is further explained in Note 41: Risk Management.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. it
is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The concept of LGD is further explained in Note 41:
Risk Management.

Undrawn Credit limits

When estimating ECL for undrawn Credit limits, the Company estimates the expected portion of the
credit card limits that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the expected
shortfalis in cash flows if the limit is drawn down.
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Forward Looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in‘the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there
is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set
by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology
to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Write-offs

Company is following the write off policy to undertake annual NPAs. The accounts, which have been
classified as NPA for 180 days or more and for which no payment is received for one year, are written
off as Bad Debts.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the balance sheet as follows:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

b) Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, the company
presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a
deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance
over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision;

3.4. Determination of Fair Value

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent
measurement, the Company measures certain categories of financial instruments (as explained in
note 40) at fair value on each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liguidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and vyield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the

instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unabservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, other short-term, highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

3.6 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash future, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Tangible Assets

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), all assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has considered
the carrying amount as per previous GAAP as deemed cost in accordance with Ind AS 101 First Time
adoption.

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic henefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE are
initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price (including non-
refundable duties and taxes but excluding any trade discounts and rebates), and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from
the balance sheet and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised. The expenditures that are incurred
after the item of PPE has been put to use, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in situations
where the said expenditure can be measured reliably and is probable that future economic benefits
associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate
asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis & written down value basis using the rates arrived
at based on the useful lives estimated by the management.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

Particulars Useful lives estimated by the | Method of Depreciation

Management (Same as specified

in Schedule 1l of the Companies

Act, 2013)
EDC 5 years SLM
Computer Hardware 3 years SLM
Computer Hardware SE 6 years SLM
Computer Software 5 years SLM
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years wDv
Vehicles 8 years WDV
Office Equipment 5 years WDV
Plant & Machinery 15 years SLM

Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. The
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Company has considered the carrying amount as per previous GAAP as deemed cost in accordance
with ind AS 101 First Time adoption.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost: Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The Costs of Intangible assets are amortized over the period of 5 years, on Straight Line Method

Intangible assets under development:

Projects under which intangible assets are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, an
estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset / cash generating unit {CGU) is made. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from cther assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit {CGU}.

Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used.,

An asset or CGU whose carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount is considered impaired and is
written down 1o its recoverable amount. Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting
years may no longer exist or may have decreased.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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3.9 Leases {As a lessee)

Identifving a lease

At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contain, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company assesses whether:

-The contract involves the use of an identified asset, this may be specified explicitly or implicitly.
-The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use, and

-The Company has right to direct the use of the asset.

Recognition of right of use asset

The Company recognises a right of use asset at the lease commencement date of lease and comprises
of the initial lease liability amount, plus any indirect costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received. The Company has adopted approach 2B as per Ind AS 116
where the right to use asset is recognised at same value at which liability is recognised.

Subsequent measurement of right of use asset

The right of use asset is subsequently amortized using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of
the lease term, whichever is lesser. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurement of the lease liability.

Recognition of lease liability

The lease liability s initially measured at the present value of the lease payments net of cash lease
incentives that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent measurement of lease liability

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability using the incremental
borrowing rate implicit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.10 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as finance cost.

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

Provision for Bonus points redemption

The Company has a reward point program which allows card members to earn points based on spends
through the cards that can be redeemed for cash. The liability for reward points outstanding as at the
year-end and expected to be redeemed in the future is estimated based on an actuarial valuation.

3.11 Inventories: Inventory, if any, is valued at cost (arrived on FIFO basis) or net realizable value,
whichever is lower.

The cost for inventory valuation includes the amount of tax or other such amount {other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities such as Input Tax Credit) incurred to bring the
goods to the place of its location and condition as at the year end.

3.12 Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses:
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax / value added taxes paid, except:

a) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable.

b) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet. -




3.13 Earning Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

3.14 Contingencies and events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

Events occurring after the date of the Balance Sheet, which provide further evidence of conditions
that existed at the Balance Sheet date or that arose subsequently, are considered up to the date of
approval of accounts by the Board of Directors, where material.

3.15 Foreign currency transaction

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during the year are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denoted in foreign currencies as at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at the closing exchange rates. Resultant exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and related assets and liabilities are accordingly restated in the Balance
Sheet. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency at the Balance Sheet date are reported using exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

3.16 Statutory Reserve

In accordance with section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company creates a reserve fund and
transfers therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
Statement of Profit and loss before any dividend is declared.

3.17 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised, and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could resuit in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods. |
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in particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

3.13 Critical judgements and key source of estimation

3.18.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting polices:

3.18.1.1 Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company determines the business
model at a level that reflects how Company's financial assets are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks
that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether
there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those
assets.

3.18.2 Key source of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
_ however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

3.18.2.1 Effective Interest Rate (EIR} Method

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of loans taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at
various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty
interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee

income/expenses that are integral part of the instrument.
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3.18.2.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

3.18.2.3 Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case.
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conclude on these
estimates.

3.18.2.4 Leases- Estimating the Incremental Borrowing Rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

3.18.2,5 Defined emplovee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

3.18.2.6. Card life

Estimation of card life relies on behavioural life trend established basis past customer behaviour/
observed life cycle
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at As at

: 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
Cash on hand 0.02 Q.02 0.01
Balances with bank* 158.82 132.57 260.63
Total 158.84 132.59 260.64

The Company has taken bank overdraft, however, the same is not considered as a part of cash and cash equivalent for cash
flow statement.
*includes unspent amount of CSR of Rs. 2.18 mn lying in current account.

Note 5: Trade Receivables

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 1 April 2019

Receivable considered good
- Unsecured
To be realised within twelve months after reporting date: 300.32 379.21 484.69
To be realised after twelve months after reporting date: 54.59 66.92 153.06
Total 363.91 446.13 637.75

. As at As at As at
Trade receivable from related party 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 | 1 April 2019
Bank of Baroda 326.14 381.21 512.31
Subsidiary of Bank of Baroda 0.26 0.50 4.87

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 {o 90 days.
Trade receivable includes majority receivables from helding company (i.e. Bank of Baroda) and the Company do not
perceive any credit risk on that

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other
person.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6: Loans and advances

Loans As At 31st March | As At 31st March| As At 1st April
2021 2020 2019
At Amortised Cost

A)

Lean and advance to customer

To be realised within twelve months after 7,801.15 4,281.91 2,636.79

reporting date

To be realised after twelve months after reporting 873.70 372,49 300.70

date .

Total (A) -Gross 8,774.84 4,654.40 2,937.49

Less:Impairment loss allowance (1,344.55) (672.24) (357.92)

Total {A) - Net 7,430.30 3,982.16 2,579.57

B)

Secured by lien on Fixed Deposits 247.96 114.54 36.03

Unsecured 8,5626.89 4,539.86 2,801.46

Total (B}-Gross 8,774.84 4,654.40 2,937.49

Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,344.55) (672.24) {357.92)

Totai (B)-Net 7,430.30 3,982.16 2,579.57

C) Loans in India

Public Sector - - -

Others 8,774.84 4,654.40 2,937.49

Total (C)- Gross 8,774.84 4,654.40 2,937.49

Less: Impairment loss allowance {1,344.55) (672.24) {357.92)

Total{C) -Net 7,430.30 3,982.16 2,579.57

D}

standard Advances 8,121.32 4,369.91 2,679.25
" [Less: Impairment loss allowance (691.02) {387.75) (99.68)

Total 7,430.30 3,982.16 2,579.57

Sub- standard Advances 653.53 284.49 258.24

Less: Impairment loss allowance (653.53) (284.49) (258.24)

Total - - -

Total (D} Gross 8,774.84 4,654.40 2,937.49

Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,344.55) (672.24) (357.92}

Total (D) Net 7,430.30 3,982.16 2,579.57

Note 7: Investments

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 1 April 2019

At Amortised Cost

Total

During the year ending 31st March, 2021 the Company has purchased and sold units of Mutual funds, the

details of which are as follows,

Fund Name Units Purchased Sales amount
amount

Baroda liquid fund 52,24,640.3580 6,404.15 7.454.10

Baroda overnight plant 9,88,308.4130 1,049.95 1,050.27

Total 62,12,948.7710 7,454.10 8,504.37

During the year ending 31st March, 2020 the Company has purchased and sold units of Mutual funds, the

details of which are as follows.

Fund Name

Baroda Liquid Fund- Direct Plan Growth
Total

Units Purchased Sales amount
amount
32,68,825.1590 3,480.00 3,480.79
32,68,825,1590 3,480.00 3,480.79
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 8: Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 1 April 2018
To be realised within twelve months after reporting
date:
Unsecured considered good
Advance to employees 1.46 216 2.90
Advance Others 0.18 0.06 0.04
Advance towards Gratuity fund 0.13 - 4.12
Advance to Vendor 2.88 0.75 0.26
Unrecovered Merchant Payment 24.11 6.19 0.91
Recoverabte towards Settlement Agency 79.12 31.09 118.89
Recoverable from O Marketing Company 4.91 14.06 27.04
Receivable from Government 10.58 - -
Insurance receivable 0.02 - -
Chargeback recoverable 7.60 19.20 2582

Less: Impairment allowance (1.13) (11.64) {14.14)
To be realised after twelve months after reporting
date:
Unsecured consisered good
Security deposits 12.66 4.13 3.70
Total 142.51 65.99 169.53
Note 9: Deferred Tax Assets
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
Deferred tax assets 441.86 238.43 154.85
Total 441.86 238.43 154.85

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balancesheet and cha

ended 31st March 2021.

rges recorded in the income tax expne

se for the year

Recongnised in

Recongnised in

Closing balance

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) opening balance profit and loss other . as on 31st March
(expense)f comprehensive 2021
Income income
Property plant and equipment 70.14 16.09 - 86.22
Provision for expenses 2215 9.46 {0.57) 31.04
ECL provision 182.84 185.33 - 368.17
Deferred revenue 7.03 11.19 - 18.22
Amaortisation of Card acquisition cost (44.29) (18.99) - (63.28)
Processing fees 0.55 1.19 - 1.74
Debl issue expenses - {0.26) - {0.26)
Total 238.43 204.00 -0.57 441.86

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balancesheet and charges recorded in the income tax expriese for the year

ended 31st March 2020.

Recongnised in | Recongnised in .
S . profit and loss other Closing bafance
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) opening balance . as on 31st March
(expense) comprehensive 2020
Income income
Property plant and equipment 53.39 16.75 - 70.14
Provision for expenses 20.11 0.04 1.99 22.15
ECL provision 92.09 80.75 - 182.84
Deferred revenue 3.39 3.65 - 7.03
Amortisation of Card acquisition cost (14.33) (29.96) - (44.29}
Processing fees 0.20 0.35 - 0.55
Total 154.85 81.58 1.99 238.43
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 11: Right-of-use assets

Particulars Right-of-use
Building
Gross block
At April 01, 2019 105.34
Additions -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2020 105.34
Additions 93.51
Disposals (49.20}
At March 31, 2021 149.65
Depreciation and impairment:
At April 01, 2019 -
Disposals -
Depreciation charge for the year 39.90
At March 31, 2020 39.90
Disposals -
Depreciation charge for the year 28.47
At March 31, 2021 68.37
Net book value:
At Aprii 01, 2019 105.34
At March 31, 2020 65.44
At March 31, 2021 81.28
Note 12: Other intangible assets
Particulars Computer
Software
Gross block
Deemed cost as at April 01, 2019 12.11
Additions 1.50
Disposals -
At March 31, 2020 13.61
Additions 2422
Disposals (3.71)
At March 31, 2021 34.12
Accumulative amortisation and impairment:
At April 01, 2019 -
Disposals -
Amortisation for the year 2.95
At March 31, 2020 2.95
Disposals (1.08)
Amortisation for the year 2.86
At March 31, 2021 4.76
Net book value:
At April 01, 2019 12.11
At March 31, 2020 10.66
29.37

At March 31, 2021

20(6%
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Note 13: Other non-financial assets

ba

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 1 April 2019

To be realised within twelve months after reporting date:
Unsecured considered good
Goods & service tax credit {input) receivable 148.59 40.11 32.35
Prepaid expenses
Unamortised card acquisition cost {contract assef) 58.62 36.33 12.01
Unamortised borrowing cost (OD processing charges) - 0.75 -
Deferred lease expenses 2.26 - -
Deferred employee cost - 0.98 1.66
Prepaid expenses 13.93 11.73 6.61
To be realised after twelve months after reporting date:
Unsecured considered good
Unamortised card acquisition cost {contract assef) 158.68 115.76 37.18
Advance tax (net of Provisions for taxation and tax deducted 291.71 211.01 93.23
at source) ‘
Prepaid expenses 1.73 0.25 0.38
Total 675.52 416.92 183.43
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14: Payables

te

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 31 March |1 April 2019
. 2021 2020

Payable within twelve months after reporting date:
Trade payables
(i) total .outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 169 0.44 0.83
enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 70.54 152.77 67.03
enterprises and smalt enterprises
Total 72.23 153.20 67.86
Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 31 March |1 April 2019

2021 2020

i} Principal amount remaining unpaid 1.69 0.44 0.83
i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid Nil Nil Nil
jii} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, . . .
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier Nil Nif Nil
heyond the appointed day
iv) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day . . .
during the period) but without adding interest specified under the Nil Nil Nil
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006
v} Interest accrued and remaining unpaid Nil Nil Nil
vi) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are Nil Nil Nil

actually paid to the small enterprises

The above information has been compiled in respect of parties to the extent to which they could be
identified as Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises , on the basis of information available with the

Company.This has been relied upen by the auditors.
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Note 15: Debt securities

particulars As At 31st As At 31st As At 1st
March 2021 March 2020 | April 2019
At Amortised cost
Unsecured:
- To be settled within twelve months after
reporting date;
Commercial paper 3,665.17 - -
- To be settled after twelve months after
reporting date;
Debentures 499.11 - -
Total (A) 4,064.23 - .
Debt sacurities in India 4,064.28 - -
Debt securities outside india - - -
Total (B) to tally with (A) 4,064.28 - -
Particulars of Unsecured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April 2019
2021 2020
Unsecured Redeemahle Non Convertible Debentures
7.65 % Unsecured Tier || NCD of Rs.10,00,000 each 500.00
INE027208011 (Redeemable at par in March'2031)
Total 500.00 - -
Less: Unamortized Expense 0.89 - -
Total 499.11 -
Particulars of Commercial paper
Particulars Rate of interest Date of As at As at As at
maturity 31 March 31 March 1 April 2019
2021 2020
Commercial Papers
Commercial Paper - INE027214100 3.80 28-05-2021 1,250.00 - -
Commercial Paper - INEQ27214118 3.78 29-06-2021 1,250.00 - -
Commercial Paper - INEQ27214050 6.15 02-07-2021 1,100.00 - -
Total 3,600.00 -
Less: Unamortized discount 34.83 -
Total 3,565.17 -
T NN
O
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Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 16: Borrowings other than debt securities & Leased liabilities

te

Particulars As At 31st As At 31st As At 1st April
March 2021 March 2020 2019
At Amortised Cost
Unsecured
To be settled within twelve months after reporting date;
Working capital loan
{a) From banks (Related party) 903.45 179.88 995,19
{b) From Bank (other than Related Parly) 1,600.00 2,555.69 -
(c) Leased liabilties 14,68 20.44 36.70
To be settled after twelve months after reporting date; .
(a) Leased liabilties 66.52 47.53 67.47
Total {A} 2,584.65 2,803.53 1,099.36
Barrowings in India 2,584,65 2,803.53 1,009.36
Total (B) to tally with (A} 2,584.65 2,803.53 1,009.36

The Company has been regular with repayment of interest and principal on all its borrowings and there is no overdue on the reporting date.

Terms of repayment;
Term loans from Banks ; Unsecured

Lender Name Tenure (months) As at As at Ag at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 | 1 April 2019
HDFC Bank 12 months 1,000.00 555.69 -
Hongkang & shanghai Banking Corporation 12 menths 600.00 2,000.00 -
Bank of Baroda 12 menths 903.45 179.88 995.19
Total Borrowings other than debt securities, above 2,503.45 2,735.57 995.19
Net Debt Reconciliation for the year ended 31st March 2021
Non Cash changes Closing
Particulars Opening bal Cash flow Inte_rest_l others balance
amortisation
Commercial paper - 3,565.17 - - 3,565.17
Debenture - 499.11 - - 459.11
waorking capital loan 2,735.57 (232.11) - - 2,503.45
leased liabilities 67.97 - 7.34 §.89 81.20
Total 2,803.53 3,832.17 7.34 5.89 6,648.93
Net Debt Recenciliation for the year ended 31st March 2020
Particulars Opening bal Cash flow Non Cash changes Closing
Interest / others balance
amortisation
Warking capital loan 985.19 1,740.37 - - 2,735.57
Leased liahilities 104.17 - 7.49 43.68 657.97
Total 1,099.36 1,740.37 7.49 43.69 2,803.53

2 (62
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17: Other financial liabilities

b

Particulars As at As at As at
‘ 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
Liabilities to be settled within twelve months after reporting date
Credit Balance In Cancelled Cards 1.62 1.31 1.62
insurance Claim Payable 0.28 0.35 1.71
Charge back hold 11.07 17.96 23.1
Merchant payment on hold 20.79 75.90 225.51
Payable to merchant - - 215.88
Cnus Chargeback 6.72 8.46 3.12
Other Payable 12.15 2.43 35.44
Payable to employees 0.25 0.41 0.78
Advance from customers 104.47 63.09 -
Liabilities to be settled after tweive months after reporting date
Refundable Deposit 6.30 6.63 3.75
Merchant payment on hold 6.93 25,30 7517
Total 170.58 201.84 587.08
Note 18: Provisions
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
Provision for employee benefits
Liabilities to be settled within twelve months after reporting date
Gratuity - 0.20 -
Staff incentive 0.44 21.54 24.50
Liabilities to be settled after twelve months after reporting date
Provigion for compensated absences 17.67 21.59 33.62
Others
Liabilities to be settled within twelve months after reporting date
Provision for Reward Point Expenses 81.33 35.91 24.65
Provision for CSR activities 1.91 3.90 -
Provision For Expenses 336.92 24513 132.14
Liahilities to be settled after twelve months after reporting date
Provision for Reward Peint Expenses - 6.34 4.35
Total 438.27 334.60 219.27
Note 19: Other Non-financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 1 April 2018
Liabilities to be settled within twelve months after reporting date
Statutory dues payable 166.54 93.68 70.03
Unearned Income 1.86 - -
Contract liability (deferment of annual fees) 62.57 24.16 11.64
Total 230.97 117.84 81.67

ocle2




Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Equity Share Capital

The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period

\ . As at As at As at
Authorised Share capital 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 | 1 Aprit 2019
40,00,00,000 (P.Y. 20,00,00,000} Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each 4,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

4,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
issued and fully paid up
17,50,00,000 (P.Y.17,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully
pald up 1,750.00 1,750.00 1,750.00
Total 1,750.00 1,750.00 1,750.00

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2021

As at March 31, 2020

As at April 01, 2019

Particulars Number of Rs. In million Number of Rs. In million Number of Rs. In
shares shares shares million
At the beginning of the reporting 17,50,00,000 1,750.00 17,50,00,000 1,750.00 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
year
Add: Issued during the year- - - - - -
Preferential allotment
At the close of the reporting year 17,50,00,000 1,750.00 17,50,00,000 1,750.00 17,50,00,000 1,750.00

Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The dividend, i any, is proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liguidation of Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of sharehelders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity Shares

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
Particulars Number in % holding in Number in % holding in Number in  |% holding in
million the class million the class miklicn the class
Bank of Barcda 175 100.00% 175 100.00% 175 100.00%

* The Bank holds 17,49,99,300 shares in its own name and the balance shares through its -7- nominee shareholders holding 100

shares each.

Note 21: Other Equity

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020} 1 Apri! 2019
Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934 352.17 352.17 352.17
Retained Earning (191.66) (97.04) 338.32
Total 160.51 255.14 690.50
a) Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-[C of the RBI Act, 1934
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 | 1 April 2019
Opening Balance 35217 352.17 35217
Add: Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss - - -
Closing Balance 352.17 362.17 3562.17
b) Retained earning
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 | 1 April 2019
Opening Balance (97.04) 338.32 3r4.42
Less : Loss during the year (96.01) {430.51) {36.10)
Add: Adjsutment for Other Comprehensive income 1.39 {4.85) -
Closing Balance {191.66) (97.04) 338.32

Nature and purpose of Reserves
Statutory reserve

The Company created a reserve pursuant to section 45 IC the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 by transferring amount not less than
twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend.,
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 22: Interest income

T e

le

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest on credit card loans 1,100.96 839.31
Other interest 0.42 0.35
Total 1,101.29 839.66

Note 23: Income from fees and services

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Income: from Fees 982.65 624.62
fncome from Merchant Operations 1,237.36 1,464.53
Income from Debit Card Operations 64.81 83.17
Total 2,284.82 2,172.32

Note 24: Other income

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Income from mutual fund 447 0.79
Provision for standard assets written back - 10.42
Liability no longer required written back 108.82 78.87
Reversal of Provision for loss due to fraud 2.33 -

Profit on derecognition of lease assets 5.56 -

Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.77 0.22
Miscellaneous income 0.15 11.03
Bad Debts Recovered 11.71 10.81
Total 133.82 112.15

Note 25: Finance Cost

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
At Amortised Cost
Interest on lease liability 7.34 7.49
Interest an borrowings 180.50 122,67
Interest on Commerciat Paper and Bonds 89.55 31.66
Interest on Debentures 2.41 -
Total 279.80 161.83

22




Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 26: Impalrment on financial instruments

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(i) Loans B72.31 3M4.32
(ii) Others receivable {10.51) 7.92
(iii} Bad debts written off 174.86 149.93
(iv) Balance written off 16.17 10.46
Total 852.83 482.63

Note 27: Employee benefit expenses

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries and wages 537.30 462,22
Contribution {0 provident and other funds 39.39 34.67
Staff welfare expenses 8.31 8.52
Total 585.00 506.41

MNote 28: Other expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Wages & Salaries to Substaff -Contractor 379.92 449.02
Business Promotion expenses 239.48 163.51
Postage & Courier 20.76 4115
Sofiwaref |.T. Expenses 57.34 50.53
Travelling Expenses 10.08 13.39
Legal and Professional 19.87 29.58
Share [ssue Expenses 10.87 -
Printing & Stationery 7.39 14.41
Bank Charges 26.07 14.16
Fixed Asset Written Off 2.74 0.74
Repairs & Maintenance 5.97 13.38
Communication Expenses 48.69 33.58
Insurance Expenses 10.91 13.95
Electricity Expenses 4,58 5.44
Advertisement Expenses 0.27 1.05
Other Administrative Expenses 10.26 23.84
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss 0.58 0.54
Rate& Taxes 0.61 0.09
Rent 35.18 19.55
Auditors Remuneration

- as auditor 0.79 0.37

- tax audit fees 0.18 017

- for certification D.40 0.07
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.03 0.06
Director's sitling fees 0.39 0.29
Losses due to frauds - 3.74
Interchange fees 364.03 940.41
EDC Processing Charges 124.42 132,03
GPRS Connectivity Charges (PO5) 16.58 18.22
Scheme charges 263.96 181,92
Card Verification Charges 40.79 67.86
Card issuance cost 2379 27.67
Documents verification charges debited (net) (3.25) 5.25
Consumption of Credit Card Plastic 3.73 2.84
Card embossing charges 1.24 0.93
Bonus Point expenses 139.76 59,15
Recovery Agent Charges 91.73 48.48
Data Processing Charges 5.71 0.97
Consumption of Debit Card Plastic 18.76 15,74
Debit card Operaticn expenses 16.05 25,22
Total 2,000.63 2,419.29

Details of CSR expenditure:

2
-~

a. Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Company during the year 2020-21 -Nii (Previous year - Rs. 4.58 mn )

b) Amount spent during the year ending

n

2020-21 2019-20
Particulars In cash* Yetto be paid in In cash* Yet to be paid
cash in cash
i Construction/Acquisition of any assets Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii Purposes other than {i) above Nil Nil 0.68 Nil

¢. Related party transactions in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility : N.A.

d. Provision movement during the year

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening provision 3.90 Nil
Addition during the year - 4.58
Utilised during the year* (2.00) {0.68)
Closing provision 1.90 3.90

* Represents actual outfiow during the year.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 29: Earnings per share

te

Basic earings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of Company by the

weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company (after adjusting for interest on the
converlible preference shares and interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of tax} by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the

conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Fellowing reflects the profit and share data used in EPS computations:
Basic/ Diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS 17,50,00,000.00 | 17,50,00,000.00
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS (94.62) {435.36)
Basic earning per share (In Rs.) {0.54) {2.49)
Dituted

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS 17,50,00,000.00  17,50,00,000.00
Net profit for calculation of Diluted EPS {94.62) {435.36)
Diluted earning per share {In Rs.) (0.54) (2.49)
Nominal / Face Value of equity shares (In Rs.) 10.00 10.00

Note 30: Income tax

The components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are:

Profit or loss section

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Current income tax:

Income tax - Current year 74.68 -
Deferred tax- Current year {204.00) {81.58)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (129.32) {81.58)

Other Comprehensive Income section

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Deferred tax expense recongnised in Other comprehensive income

(6.57)

1.99

Income tax expense reported in the Other Comprehensive section

(0.57)

1.99

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Profit/{loss) before tax from a continuing operations {225.34) (512.09)
Income tax rate (as on March 31, 2021 29.12% 29.12%
Income tax expanses {65.62) -
Tax effect of:

Others adjustments 140.29 -
deferred tax on timing difference (204.00) (81.58)
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss {129.33) (81.58)

* The Company may adopt taxation regim under section 115BAA under Income tax Act for year under review, The tax rate under

115BAA is at 25.168%

3969




Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021

(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31: Retirement benefit plan
i} Defined contribution plan

e

The Company makes Contribution which are defined contributions pfans for qualifying employees. Under, the schemes, the
company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable
to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rutes of scheme.

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of profit and loss:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Employers’ Contribution to Employee’s Provident Fund’ 29,81 28.25
Employee State Insurance Corporations (ESIC) 0.70 0.60
Contribution to National Pension Scheme 2.27 1.03
Labour Welfare Fund 0.02 0.02
Total 32.80 29.90

! Provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited with Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner and is charged to Staternent of Profit and Loss.

ii) Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan {unfunded). The company's defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary

plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The gratuity plan is governed
by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to spegific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and last drawn salary.

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

below:

a} Change in bond yields -
A decrease in government bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

by) Inflation risk -

The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

c) Life expectancy -

The present value of defined benefit plan obligation is caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants, both during and after the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the

plan’s liability.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the
funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Change in benefit obligations

Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 36.93 23.71
Interest on defined benefit obligation 21 1.79
Current Service cost 6.79 5.29
Liability Transferred InfAcquisition -
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) - (0.32)
Actuarial (Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic - 3.82
Assumptions
Actuarial {Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial 0.33 217
Assumptions
Actuarial Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience {1.84) 0.47
Liability at the end of the year 44.32 36.93
Table Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period 36.73 27.83
Interest income 2.30 2.32
Contributicns by the Employer 4.96 7.29
Benefit Paid From the Fund - (0.32)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0.45 {0.39)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 44,45 36.73
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheat
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 | April 01, 2019
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 44.32 36,93 23.71
Amount not recognized due to asset limit {44.45) {36.73) {27.83)
Net defined benefit Iiabllity I {asset) recognized in balance sheet {0.13) 0.20 (4.12)
Current (0.13) 0.20 (4.12)
Non-current - - -
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

da

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Current service cost 6.79 529
Interest on net defined benefit liability / {(asset) (0.20} {0.52)
Total expense charged to profit and loss account 6.59 4,77
Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (OCI}
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 | April 01, 2019
Opening amount recognized in OCI outside profit and loss account
Remeasurements during the period due to
Changes in financial assumptions 0.33 217 -
Changes in demographic assumptions - 3.82 -
Return gn plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income {0.45) 0.39 {1.02)
Experienca adjustments {1.84) 0.47 {2.69)
Closing amount recognized in OCI outside profit and loss accouny (1.96}) 6.84 {3.71)

are as follows:

The actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and Aprif 01, 2019

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 | April 01, 2049
Discount Rate 6.05% p.a. 6.20% p.a, 7.75% pa
Expected return on plan assets 6.05% p.a. 6.20% p.a. 7.75% p.a
Retirement Age (years): 60 years 60 years B0 years
Mortality tables 2012-14 201214 2006-08
withdrawal rates per annum
25 & below 18% 18% 15%
25t0 35 18% 18% 15%
351045 18% 18% 3%
45 to 55 18% 18% 2%
55 and above 18% 18% 1%
Salary escalation rate 8,00% p.a for 8.00% p.a for 9.00% p.a for
next 1 years & next 2years & | next 3 years &
6.00% p.a 8.00% pa 6.00% p.a
thereafter thereafter thereafter
Balance sheet recongiliation
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 | April 01, 2019
Opening net liability 0.20 {4.12) 2.18
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 6.59 477 3.23
Expenses recognized in OCI (1.98) 6.84 {(3.71)
Employer's Contribution (4.96) (7.29) (5.52)
Net liabllity recognized in the Balance Sheet {0.13) 0.20 {4.12)

Cash Flow Projection

Expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of

the employees as at the valuation date

Partigulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 | April 01, 2019
Expected benefits for year 1 G.44 5.90 1.1
Expected benefits for year 2 5,95 5,22 1.13
Expected benefits for year 3 567 4.87 1.03
Expected benefits for year 4 5.99 5.02 1.03
Expected benefits for year § 5.46 4.36 1.60
Expected benefits for year & to 10 years cash flow 18.44 14.91 6.59
Sensitivity analysis
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 | April 01, 2019
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Delta effect of +0.5% change in rate of discounting 43,24 36.06 22.32
Delta effect of -0.5% change in rate of discounting 45.45 37.85 2522
Delta effect of +0,5% change in rate of salary increase 45.36 37.78 24.55
Delta effect of -0.5% change in rate of salary increase 43,27 36.09 22.76
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Figure in Rupees in milliens, unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Revenue from Contract with Customer

"

The Company derives revenue from a variety of service contract with customers which are governed by IND AS 115 such
as interchange income, annual fees, business development incentives and olher fees etc. Below table shows revenue from

contract with customer.

Revenue from services March 31, 2021 |March 31, 2020
Income from fees and services 2,284.82 2,172.32
Income from Consultancy 114.48 117.51
Business development incentives 28.19 15.09
Total 2,427.49 2,304,981

Disaggregation of Revenue:

The Company is engaged in the business of issuing credit cards to consumers in India. It also provides support to Bank of
Baroda by carrying out its merchant acquiring operations and manpower/consultancy services. The segment wise

bifurcation is provided in note no 38.

Receivable from contract with customers and contract balance

Particulars March 31, 2021 |March 31, 2020
Trade receivables 363.91 446.13

Total 363.91 446.13
To be realised within twelve months after reporting date: 309.32 379.21
To be realised after twelve months after reporting date: 54.59 66.92
Trade receivables include unbilled revenue | 79.69 310.27

Contract Cost

Cost of acquiring a customer is the incremental cost of obtaining the contract with customer, which is recongnised in the

proiit and loss statement over the behavioural life of the customer i.e § years.

Particulars March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 152.09 49.19
Capitalised during the year 114.10 130.85
Amortised during the year 48.88 28.06
Closing balance ) 217.30 152.09
To be realised within twelve months after reporting date: 58.62 36.33
To be realised after twelve months after reporling date: 158.68 115.76

The unamortised contract cost are disclosed in note:13 o financial statements.

Contract llablities

The compnay sell credit card to card holders, income earned from customer as card fees is recongnised as revenue over

the period of 12 months.

Particulars March 31, 2021 |March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 2416 11.64
Capitalised during the year 116.14 49.68
Amortised during the year 77.72 37.17
Closing balance 62,57 24.16
To be realised within twelve months after reporting date: 62.57 2416
To be realised after twelve months after reporting date: Nil Nil

The Contract Liabilties are disclosed in note:19 to financial statements.

Note 34; Contingent liabilities, commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses
such claims and assertions and moniters the legal environment on an engoing basis, with the assistance of external legal
counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and
capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are
considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a
liahility in ifs accounts unless the loss becomes prebable. The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings
will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

Particulars March 31, 2021 |[March 31, 2020  [April 1, 2019

Income tax malters - appeals by Company Nil 0.77 8.03
Claim filed against the Company in consumer court 3.63 0.23 0.88
Total 3.63 0.99 6.91
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35: Related party disclosures
Relatlonship

Holding Company

Subsidiary company

Other Group Companies

Key Managament Personnet

Name of the party

Bank of Bareda

Nil

i) Subsidiaries of holding company
The Nainital Bank Limited

Bank of Baroda {Kenya) Limited
Bank of Baroda {Uganda) Limited
Bank of Baroda (Guyana) Inc
Bank cof Baroda {UK) Limited

Bank of Bareda (Tanzania) Limited

L

Bank of Bareda {Trinidad & Tobago) Lid,

Bank of Baroda {New Zealand) Lid.
Bark of Baroda {Botswana) Limited
BQA Capital Markats Limiled

Baroda Giobal Shared Services Lid

Baroda Asset Management India Limited

Baroda Trustes India Private Limited
BOB (UK) Lid.

ity Associates company of holding comparny

Baroda Uttar Pradesh Gramin Bank

Baroda Rajasthan Kshstriva Gramin Bank

Baroda Gujarat Gramin Bank
Indo- Zambia Bank Ltd {Lusgka)

india Intemationat Bank Malaysia Berhad

iiiy Joint venture of holding company

India First Life Insurance Company Limited

India Infra dabt Limited

Name

Shri Sanjiv Chacha

Shri Vikramaditya S Khichi
Shri Rajneesh Sharma
Shri Purshotam

Ms. Archana Pandey

Shri Kalidindi Satyanarayana Raju
Shri Atul Malik

Shri Sharad Sarin

Shri Manish Banesjea

Shri Shailendra Singh
Ms.Pooja Karnani

Designation

{Chairmman) {w.a.f 01st May 2020)

{Exacutive Director)

{Non-executive Director) (upto 10th November 2020)
{Non-executive Director) {w.e.f 11th November 2020)
[{MNon-executive Director)

{Non-executive Director) (upte D9th March 2021)
(Independent Directar)

{Independent Director}

Managing Direcler & CEQ) (upto 05th June 2020)
{Managing Director & CEO) (w.e.f 06th June 2020)
({Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Ceepashri Comelius Company Secretary)
Related Party transactions during the year:
Holding Company Asseclates ! Enterprises owned or Key Management Personnel
significantly Influenced by Key
Management Personnel or thelr
Particulars relatives
As at As at As at As at Asat As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Transactlons
1. MDR Subvention 61.74 247.83 - . - -
2. Revenue From Debit Card Cperations 55,50 7787 9.3 520 - -
3. Servite Charges 414,52 163.15 - - - -
4. Income from Consultancy service 114.48 117.51 - . - -
5. POS Charges 68.05 133.05 - - - -
6. Income from mutual fund investments - - 447 a7e - -
7. DST Expenses paid f {recovered) {0.28) - - - - -
8. Rent 1564 20.40 . - - -
. Interest on Short term bomowings 11.86 68.83 - - - -
10. Bank Charges 2528 13.74 - - - -
11. Insurance Expensas - - 027 1.49 - -
12. Card issuance cost - - 52.31 48.24 - -
13. Director's - Emplayee Benefit Expenses - - - - 535 479
14. Director’s - sitting fees - - - - 029 0.29
15. Kay Managerial Persons - Employee - - - - 771 8.24
Benefit Expansas
16. Visa Olher Charges 90,50 - - - - -
17. Gratuity premium paid - . 4,96 7.29 - -
18. Rovyalty for Lego 0.50 0.50 - - - .
B. Balance Receivables at year end
1. Trade Receivables 32614 ast21 0.26 0.50 - -
2. Loan and advance to cusiomer - - - - 033 0.14
3. Advance 1o vandor . - 0.02 .01 - -
4. Cash and cash equivalents 123.09 123.28 - - - -
5. Gratuity {Li%e Insurance Fund) - - 44.45 36.73 - -
C. Balance Payables at year end
1. Borrowings (othar than dabt securilies) 903.45 179.88 - - . -
2. Trade Payables - 34.69 15.90 15.57 - -
3. Previsions 92.62 25.29 12.57 - - -
4. Other financial liabifities 12.15 243 - - - -
Note:

a) Related parties have been identified on the basis of ihe declaralion recelved by tha management and other records available.

b} Provisions for graluily, compensaled absences and ather long term service benefils are mads for the Company as a whole and the amounts pertalning to the key
managerial parsonnel are not spacifically identified and hence are not included abova.
¢} The Company enters Into Iransactions, arrangements and agreements involving related parties in the ordinary course of business under the same cammercial and
markel termns, interest and commissian rates ihat apply ta nan-related parties.

i
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless ctherwise stated)

Note 36: Capital

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital
adequacy requirements of the local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RB!) of India. The adequacy of the
Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBL.

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activilies. in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount
of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made
to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
Regulatory capital
Common Equity Tier1 (CET1) capital 1,150.70 1,590.24 2,258.55
Other Tier 2 capital instruments 611.44 65.72 50.92
Total capital 1,762.14 1,655.97 2,309.47
Risk weighted assets
i) CRAR (%) / CET1 capital ratio 19.61% 31.50% 56.69%
ity CRAR - Tier | capita! (%) 12.80% 30.25% 55.44%
i) CRAR - Tier Il Capital {%} 6.80% 1.25% 1.25%

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained eamings including
current year profit less accrued dividends . Certain adjustments are made t¢ Ind AS—based results and reserves, as
presciibed by the Reserve Bank of India. The other component of regulatory capital is other Tier 2 Capital Instruments.

45‘( 4




Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 315t March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in milliens, unless otherwise stated)

Note 37 : Events after reporting date

The impact of COVID-18, including thanges in customer behaviour and pandemic fears, as well as restrictions on business and individual activities, has (8¢ o volatility In
Indian financial markets and a decrease in local economic activities. The slowdown during the year led to a decrease in the use of credit cards by custemars and the
sfficiency in collection effarts. This may lead to a rise in the number of custemer defaulls and consequently an increase in provisiens there against, The extent to which the
COVID- 19 pandemle, including the current "secend wave" that has significantly increased the number of cases in India, will continue to impact the Campany's resulis will
dapend on ongoing as well as future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among olher things, any new information conceming the severity of the COVID-
19 pandemic and any action te contain its spread or miligate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by us,

In anticipation of the expecied economic fallout, we have brought our provision more in line with expected impact of the macro-gconamic situation relevant to our
customers and business. We are closely menitering our asset guality. We are also identifying segments of potential strass and faking suitable actions te manage our
exposures. These segments and sirategles are being actively monitored and will be refined as more data becomes available. We believe that our current provisions taken
against the impacted portfolio are reasonable and sufficient to absarb any additional COVID related stress at this point in time. Given the dynamic nature of the pandemic
situation, these eslimates are subject to uncertalnty and may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic. In the event the Impacts ara more severs or
prolonged than anticipated, this will have a comesponding impact on the carrying value of financial assets, the financial position and performance of the Gompany and we

may be required to hold additional provisfons under such scenario

Nate 38; Segment reporting

The Management has reviewed and reconsidered the requiremants of presenting segment infarmation and accordingly identified Business segment as the Primary
segment far disclosurs for the curment year. The Company operations are in India and hence there is no segment reporting by geographical segment. Segment Informatian

has been prepared in conformily with the Ind AS 108 on 'segment reporiing'.

Busfness Merchant Credit Card Deblt Card Other Total
Segment {acquiring) {issulng)
Partlculars E.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y.
2020-21 2018-20 2020-21 2018-20 2020-21 2013-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Revenue 1,343.7¢ 1,549.88 2,137.34 1,504.84 66.87 83.58 114.72 118.40 3,662.89 3,286.71
Result 377.36 2849 (631.98) (596.66) 19.73 33.50 9.56 22.58 {225.33) {512.09)
Unallocated - -
Operating Profit 377.36 28.49 (631.98) {596.66) 10.73 33.50 9.56 22.58 (225.33) {512.09)
interest Income + - -
Profit/{Loss) 377.26 28.49 (631.88) {596.66) 18.73 33.50 9.56 22.58 (225.33) (512.08)
Income Taxes {128.32) (81,58)
Extra.ordinary - -
Net Profit before {96.01) {430.51)
10C| adlustmant
Other Information
Segment Assets 440.88 657.97 7.923.60 4,208.94 200.25 47.38 306.08 238.85 8,870.80 5,245.13
Unallocated 6C0.70 371.02
Total Assets 9,471.50 5,618.15
Segment 208.64 277.30 651.13 4AB7.96 36.06 17.05 16.23 25.17. 912.05 a07.48
Unallecated §,555.44 4,608.67
Total Liabllitles 9,471.49 5,616.15
Capltal 8.54 5.06 3364 15.52 0.38 0.20 - - 42.56 20.78
Unallocated - -
Depreclation/Amo 136.28 155.48 3317 37.27 0.10 0.49 0.21 0.84 169.76 194.08
Unallocated - -
Non cash 90.66 72.18 117 (3.30) = {0.01) - - 91.83 58.88
Unallocated - -
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 39: Leases

de

The Company’s lease asset class primarily consist of leases for office premises. Generally, the Company is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. The Company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do

not contain a purchase option).

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Office premises March 31, 2021} March 31, 2020
Opening net carrying balance 65.44 105.34
Additions 88.67 -
Deletion (44.36} -
Depreciation {28.47) (39.90}
Closing net carrying balance 81.28 65.44

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease Fabilities (included under Other fina
during the year:

ncial liability} and the movements

Particulars March 31, 2021| March 31, 2420
Opening Balance 67.97 104.17
Additions 88.67 -

Deletions (48.97) -

Accretion of interest 7.34 7.49
Payments {33.81) (43.69)
Closing Balance 81.20 67.97

Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liability

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on

an undiscounted bhasis:

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 | April 1, 2019
Not later than one year 14.68 20.44 36.70
later than ane year not later than five year 66.52 47.53 67.47
Later than five year ~ - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 81.20 67.97 104.17

Amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Depreciation expense
Depreciation on right of use assets
Other expenses

Short-term lease rent expense
Finance cost

Interest expense on lease liability

28.47

35.18

7.34

39.90

19.55

7.49
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 40: Fair value measuroment

The following table combines comparable information about :

- clasess of financial instruments based on their financial nature and characteristics,

- carrying ameunt of financial instruments.

-The financial assets / liabilities are recorded at amortised cost

- All the finanical assets and financial liabilities carryin value which is at amortised cost reflects fair value for these assets and liabilities.

Accounting classification and fair values.
As at March 31, 2021

Carrying value Fair Value
Particulars FVTPL A“‘C‘L';‘tse“ Total Level [ Level il Level Il Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 158.84 158.84 - - - -
Bank balance other than above - - - - - - -
Receivabes - 363.91 363.91 - - - -
Loans - 7.430.30 7.430.30 - - - -
Investments - - - - - - -
Other financial assets - 142.51 142.51 - - - -
Total - 8,085.56 8,095.56 - - - -
Financial llabilities
Trade Payakbles - 72.23 72.23 - - - -
Debt securities - 4,064.28 4,064.28 - - - -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - 2,584,865 2,584.65 - - - -
Other financial Babilities - 170.58 170.58 - - - -
Total - 6,891.74 6,891.74 - - ' - -
As at March 31, 2020

Carrying value " Fair Value
Particulars FVTPRL Amc"o':'tsed Total Level | Level Il Level il Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 132.59 132.59 S - - -
Bank balance other than above - - - - - - -
Trade receivables - 446,13 446.13 - - - -
Loans . - 3,982.16 3,982.16 - - - -
Investments - - - - - - -
Other financial assets - 65.99 65.99 - - - -
Total - 4,626.87 4,626.87 - - - -
Financial liabilities '
Trade Payables - 153.20 153.20 - - - -
Debt securities - - - - - - -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - 2,803.53 | 2,803.53 - - - -
QOther financial liabilities - 201.84 201.84 - - - -
Total - 3,1658.68 3,158.58 - - - -
As at April 1, 2019

Carrying value Fair Value
Particulars FVTPL A’"c‘::'t"'e" Total Levell Leve! I Level 1Il Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 260.64 260.64 - - - -
Bank balance other than above - - - - - - -
Trade receivables - 637.75 637.75 - - - -
Loans - 2,579.57 2,579.57 - - - -
Investments - - - - - - M
Other financial assets - 169,53 169.53 - - - -
Total - 3,647.50 3,647.50 - - - -
Financizl tabilitles
Trade Payables - 67.86 G7.86 - - - -
Debt securities - - - - - - -
Borrowings (other than debt securities} - 1.099.36 1,099.38 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 587.08 587.08 - - - -
Total - 1,764.30 1,764.30 - - - -
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 41: Risk Management

Introduction and Risk Profile
Company started of its operations in 1994 with Credit card issuance. This process of risk management is crilical to company's vision, and holds very high importance in
the board govemance. The company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It is also subject to various operating and business risks.

{a)Risk management structure

Credit risk is the risk of incuming financial loss to the company due to the default of company’s customers in fulfiling their contractual obligations te the company. The
credit risk management team reports to Chief Risk Officer. The Chief Risk Officer meets with the Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) independently every
quarter. Credit risk arises mainly from loans and advances ta retail customers arising en account of facilitaling credit card loans to customers

Credil risk management approach

Managing credit risk is the most important part of total risk management exercise. The Company’s credit risk subfunction headed by Chief Risk Officer (CRO) is
responsible for the key policies and processes for managing credit risk, which include formulating eredit policies and risk rating frameworks, guiding the Company’s
appetite for credit risk exposures, undertaking independent reviews and objective assessment of credit risk, and monitoring performance and management of
ponifolios. The principal objeclives being malintaining a strang culture of responsikle lending across the Company, and robust risk policies and control frameworks,
implementing and continually re-evaluating our risk appelite and ensuring there is adequate menitoring of credit risks, their costs and their miligation, The basic credit
risk management would cover two key areas, viz., {8) customer selection & (b) customer management. These are govemed by Board Approved Credit Policy and
Cellections Policy which is reviewed on a regular basis. Organization has worked on strengthening the credit decision process with pre-qualification of the probable
cusiomers and scientific selection based on liability score model developed intemally for appropriate customer sefection and targeting, We have made mulliple
interventions throughout the year to strengthen the acquisition quality. This bas led {o improvement in approval rales in the current financtal year. The changes include
diseontinuation of programs, revision in MCP, scorecard level changes ete. Credit lImit assignment is a function of income capacity and risk assessment done for the
individual applicant. Risk assessment is done based on intemal scorecards that are based on applicant bureau history, application profile and demographic variables.
Further, we assess the credit history indicators as determined by independent 3rd party agencies — extemal rating, bureau reporting, REI negative list and asset
classification letters from bankers. ’

Post acquisition porifolio delinquency management is carried out through Account Management System, which includes:

+Fraud deteclion

+Porifolio quality review

«Credit line increase

*Crass sell on cards

-Behavior scorecard; and

*Cellection score card ete.

The Company deploys right technology and resources to ensure the same. The Company has deployed practices/analytics such as ihe following to monitor and
miligate credit Delinquency metrics have been developed and constantly evaluated & porifolio interventions leading to better

quality of incoming new accounts Strong collection practices driving consistent improvements in collection metrics &leveraging the latest credit
bureau information 1o improve recoveries from older pools Strong use of analytics in measuring and monitering credit risk are used such as;
Scorecards assessing default risk & payment propensity Predictive Business Analytics Models

The key elements in calculation of ECL are as follows:

Stage 1: 12.months ECL

All exposures thal are not credit impaired and where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the
reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. Exposures with days past due (DPD) less than or equal to 30 days are
classified as stage 1.

For these assets, 12.month ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calcutated on ihe gross carrying amount of the asset {that is, without deduction for credit
allowance).

Slage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired
For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credil risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, are classified under this slage.

Exposures with DPD greater than 30 days but less than or equal to 89 days are c¢lassified as stage 2. For these assets, [ifetime ECL are recognized, bul interest
revenue is still caleulated on the gross carrying amount of the assel.

Stage 3: Lifelime ECL - credit impaired
Financia! assel is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events thal have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.

For financial assels that have become credil impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised on principal outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD equal to or more
than 90 days are classified as stage 3.

The table below shows the credit quality and the exposure to credit risk based on the year-end stage classification. The amgunls presented are gross of
impalrment allowances.

As on 31st March 2021,
Gross Expocted Net
Category Assels category Carrying " Carrying PD
Credit Loss
Amount Amount

Stage 1 Credit card 7.693.81 596.97 7.086.85 | 0.50% o 6.77%
Slage 2 Credit card 427.50 94.05 333.45 | 2.45% 10 29.56%
Slage 3 Credit card 653.53 653.53 - 100%
Total 8,774,84 1,344.55 7,430.30
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

As on 31st March 2020.

Gross Expected Net
Category Assets category Carrying Credit Loss Carrying PD
Amount Amount
Stage 1 Credit card 3,887.73 300.12 3687.61 | 0.42% 10 7.67%
Stage 2 Credit card 302.28 87.63 294.65 | 0.58% to 32.89%
Stage 3 Credit card 284.39 284.49 {0.10} 100%
Total 4,654.40 672.24 3,982.17
As on 1st April 2019.
Gross Net
Category Assets category Carrying cExp.ected Carrying FD
redit Loss
Amount Amount
Stage 1 Credit card 2,512.90 81.10 2,431.67 | 0.44% to 4.38%
Stage 2 Credit card 166.48 18.59 147.90 | 0.97% to 20.05%
|Stage 3 Credit card 25811 258.24 - 100%
Total 2,937.49 357.92 2,579.57
An analysis of changes in the gross cartying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans:
As at March 31, 2021
Risk categorisation Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Internal rating grade
Performing
High grade (0 CPD) 7,083.51 - - 7,083.51
Standard grade {1-30 DPD) 610.31 B - 610.31
Sub-standard grade (31-60 DPD) . 227.76 - 227.76
Past due but not impaired {61-89 DPD) - 189.74 - i99.74
Non- performing
Individually impaired (90 DPD and above, restructured assets) - - 653.563 653.53
Total 7.693.81 A27.50 653.53 8,774.84
As at March 31, 2020
Risk categorisation Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing .
High grade (3 DPD) 3,986.89 - - 3,986.88
Standard grade (1-30 DPD} 0.74 - - 0.74
Sub-standard grade (31-60 DPD) - 214.45 - 214.45
Past due but not impaired (51-89 DPD} - 167.83 - 167.83
Non- performing
Individually impaired {90 DPD and above, restructured assets) - - 2B84.48 284.48
Total ) 3,987.63 382.28 284.48 4,664.40
As at April 1, 2019
Risk categorisation Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
High grade {0 DFD) 2,132.33 - - 2,132.33
Standard grade (1-30 DFD) 380.56 - - 3B0.56
Sub-standard grade {31-80 DPD) - 107.85 - 107.85
Past due but not impaired (§1-89 DPD) - 58.63 - 58.63
Non- performing
Individually impaired {90 DPD and above, restructured assels) - - 258,11 258.11
Total 2,512.89 166.48 258.11 2,937.49
An analysis of changes in the gross carrylng amount and the corresponding ECL altowances in relation to loan
As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gress carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 4,035.88 382,28 284.39 4,702.55
New assels originated or purchased* 4,183.15 222 50 (9.47} 4,396.18
Assets derecognised or repaid {excluding write offs) (127.57) (3.29) {18.0%) (148.85)
Transfers to Stage 1 123.60 (123.58) (0.03) 0.00
Transters to Stage 2 {168.12) 168.12 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 {352.93) (218.55) 571.48 {0.G0})
Changes to contractual cash flows due to modifications not resulting in -
derecoghnition
Amounts written off (0.21) - (174.83) (175.0%)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 7,693.81 427.50 653.53 8,774.84
As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrylng amount as at April 1, 2019 2,512.90 166.48 258.11 2,937.49
New assets originated or purchased* 1,719.01 212.04 40,07 1,971.11
Assets derecognised or repald {excluding wrile offs) (50.11) {9.24) {24.19) {83.53)
Transfers lo Stage 1 7205 (68.04) (4.01) -
Transfers lo Stage 2 {137.59) 140.03 (2.44) 0.00
Transfers to Stage 3 (106.57) (5B.55} 165,11 -
Changes to contraciual cash flows due lo modifications not resulting in
derecognition
Amounts wrilten off {22.06) {0.45) (14B.17) (170.67)
Gross carrylng ameunt as at March 31, 2020 3,987.63 382.28 284.48 4,684.40
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(Figure in Rupees in milions, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of ECL balance

As at March 31, 2021
[Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Impairment allowance for loans to custorners as at March 31, 2020 300.12 87.63 284.49 672.24
Assets derecagnised or repaid (6.99) (0.37) (18.01) (25.37)
New assels originated 327.03 72,76 493.65 893,43
Revarsal of COVID overlay {10.72) {10.13) - {20.84)
Impact on year end ECL of Exposures transferred between stages during -
the year .

Transfers to Stage 1 22,71 {22.68} (0.03) {0.00}
Transfers to Stage 2 (9.97) 997 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (25.13) (43.13) 68.26 (0.00)
Changes lo models and inputs used for ECL calculations -
Amounts written off (0.08) - (174.83) {174.91)
Impairment allowance for loans to eustomers as at March 31, 2021 596.97 94.05 653.53 1,344.55
As at March 31, 2020

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Impalrment allowance for loans to customers as at April 1, 2019 81.10 18.59 258,24 357.92
Assels derecognised or repaid {3.78) {1.08) {24.19) (29.05)
New assets originated 179.21 63.06 195.85 438,12
COVID overlay 38.18 14.61 - 53.79
Impact on year end ECL of Exposures fransferred between stages during -
the year

Transfers to Stage 1 11.58 (7.54) (4.01) -
Transfers to Slage 2 {3.94) 6.38 (2.44) 0.00
Transfers to Stage 3 {2.85) (6.36} 9.21 -
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calcuations -
Amounts written off {0.35) {0.02) (148.17} (148.54)
impairment allowance for loans to customars as at March 31, 2020 a00.12 B87.63 284.49 672.24
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(b} Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk i the current and prospective risk arising oul of an inability to meet financial commitments as Lhey fall due, through available cash flows or through the sale of assats at fair
marke! value. Il includes both, the risk of unaxpecied increases in the cost of funding an assel perifolio al appropriale malurilies and the risk of being unable 1o liquidale a position in a timely
manner a! a reasonable price.

The Company managas liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securilies and by having access 10 funding through an adeguate amount of commilled credit lines. Given
the peed lo fund diverse products, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under commitied credit fines to mes! obligations when due. Management regulady
monitors the position of cash and cash aquivalenls vis-4-vis projections, Assessment of malurily profiles of financial assets and fi lal liabilities including debi fi ing plans and
mainienance of Balance Sheet liquidity ratios are i d while revi g the liquidily p

Wae manage liquldity risk in accordance with our Asset Liability Management Policy, This policy is framed as per the current regulatory guidelines and is approved by the Board of Direclors.
The Asset Liability Management Policy is reviewad periodicaily 1o incorporate changes as required by regulatory stipulation or te realign the policy with changes in the econcmic landscape.
The Asset Liability Committea (ALCC) of the Campany formulates and reviews sirategies and pravides guidanca for management of liquidity risk within the framework laid oul in the Asset

Liabilily Management Policy.

The table below summarises the matwity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets

31 March 2021

Particulars Cn Upto ane One monthte 2 | 2 hsto 3| 3 th ] ths |1 yearto 3| 3 years to [more than 5 Total
temand Month months months tob to 1 year years 3 years yoars
months
Financlal assets.
Cash and cash equivalents 158.84 - - - - - - - - 158.84
Bark talance olher than above - - - - - - - - - -
Recsivables - 40.03 54,59 54.59 127.37 32.75 54.59 - - 363.91
Loans - 4,225.36 1,480.95 593.95 583.46 332.03 204,55 - - 7,430.30
Investments - - - - - - - - - -
Other financial assets - 39.57 - - 4.91 85.37 12.66 - - 142.51
Teotal undiseounted financlal assets - 486.70 169.47 70.60 76,77 48,57 2874 7748 - B,005.56
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables ' - 23.82 2420 156,13 807 - - - - 72.23
Debt securilies - - 1,242.66 1,238.60 1,083.80 - - - 499.10 4,084.28
Borrowings (other than debt securities) . 805.55 400.00 - - 600.00 697.80 Lo - 2,503.45
Clher financial liabilities - 125.99 7.16 10.17 7.94 G.10 13.22 - - 170.58
Total undiscounted financial liabilities - 955.36 1,674.04 1,264.90 1,099.91 606.10 71192 - 459,10 §,810.54
31 March 2020
Particulars On Upto one One monthto 2 | 2 thsto 3| 3 h 6 hs |1 yearto 3| 3 years to |[more than 5 Total
demand Month months months toé to 1 year years 3 years years
menths
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 132.59 - - - - . - - - 132.59
Bank balance ather than above - - - - - - - - - -
Receivables - 49.07 66.92 66.92 156.15 40.15 £6.92 - - 446,13
Leans - - - 3,284.86 402.10 207.20 88.00 - - 3,982.16
Investmenis . - - - - - - - - - -
Other financial asseis 15.55 - - - 14.06 32.26 4.12 - - €5.99
Total undiscounted financial assets 148.14 17.51 66.92 3,351.78 572.34% 279.61 159.04 - - 4 626.87
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 3064 76,80 3064 15.22 - - - - . 153.20
Debt securities - - - - - B - - - -
Sorrowings (other than dabt securities) - 1,647.17 - - - 500.00 - 588.40 - 2,735.57
Cther financial liabilities - 87.23 19.57 23.85 16.03 21.14 31.62 - - 201.84
Total undiscounted financial lfabilities 30.64 1.811.00 50.21 39.27 16.03 521.14 31.82 588.40 - 3,000.61
01 April 2019
Particulars On Upto one One month te 2 | 2 months to 3| 3 months | 6 months |1 yearto 3] 3 years to [more than 5 Total
demand Month months mornths te 5 to 1 year years 5 yoars years
maonths
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 260.64 - - - - - - - - 260.64
Bank balance other than atove - - - - - - - - - -
Receivables - 5.36 63.78 95.60 95.66 223.21 57.40 05.66 - 63795
Loans - 2,536.46 - - 0.44 .20 41.05 1.41 - 2,579.57
Investments - - - - - - - - - -
Olher financial assels 59.44 - - - 27.04 79.35 3.70 - - 169.53
Total undiscounted financial asseis 320.09 2,542 84 §3.78 95.66 123.14 02,7 102.15 97.07 - 3,647.49
Financial liabilities.
Trade Payables - 47.50 13.57 6.79 - - . - - €7.86
Dett securities - - - - - - - - - -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - 99519 - - - - - - - 995.19%
Other financial liabilities - 83.18 49.19 53.28 40.34 21117 78.92 587.08
Total undi d fi lal fiabilities - 1,130.97 62.76 60.07 40.34 27717 78.92 - - 1,650.13
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{c) Market risk

The Company is exposed 1o interest rate risk as it has assets and Labilities based on fioaling interest ratas as well. The Company has an approved Assets and Liabilly Management policy
which empowers the Assets and Liability Managemant Commitiee (ALCO} 1o assess the interest rale risk run by it and provide appropriale guidelines 10 the Treasury 1o manage the risk. The
ALCO raviews the interesi risk on periodic basis and decides on 1he assets profile and the appropriate funding mix. The ALCO reviews the interes! rale gap slatement and the interest rafe
sensitivity analysis.

Financlal Assots - As March 34, 2021 As March 31, 2020 As April 1, 2019

Fixed- rate instruments 7,420.30 3,982,186 2,579.57
Floaling-rale insirumenis - - -
total 7,430.30 3,582.16 2,579.57
Financial Llabilitios As March 31, 2021 As March 31, 2020 As April 1, 2019

Fixed- rale instruments. 499.11 - -
Fioaling-rate insiruments 6.060.63 2,735.57 995.1%
total 6,567.73 2,738.57 995.1%

Falr value sensitivity analysis for floating- rate instruments.
The sensitivily analysis below have been delermined based on exposure to the interest rates for financial instumerts at the end of tha reporting periad and ihe stipulated change taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant through aut the reporting period in case of instruments that have floaling rates. {f the interes! rale had been 100 basis points higher or

lower and all other variables were 1ant, the Comy profit before tax would have changed by the following.
Partlculars As March 31, 2021 As March 31, 2020
100 bps higher| 100 bps lower 100 bps 100 bps
higher lower
{impact on profit {19.70) 15.70 (45.10) 45.10

{d) Operational risk
Operalional risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadeguate or failed internal pracesses, pecple and system of from external evenis. The Compnay's focuses on managmant and canirol of
opaeralional risks through a comprehesive system of intemal ¢onlrols and monitering performance of each funclion against defined lhreshokls,

Cperational risk management comprises Identlfication and assessment of fisk and conlrols, new products and precess approval framawork, measurement ihrough eperational risk incidants,
moniloring through key risk indicators and miligatien through process and conirol enhancement.

Note 42: Expenditure in foreign currenicy

March 31, 2021 March 31,
Particulars 2020
Incame In Forelgn currency i
Income from BCeblt card international operation, Currency conversion 29.72 45.92
Total 29.72 45,92
Exgenditure in forelgn curency
Scheme charges 263.96 181.92
Total 263.96 181.52
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43: First-time adoption of Ind AS

43.1 Ovarall Principle:

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2021, are the first annual financial statements the Company has prepared in accordance
with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards natified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2021, together
with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In
preparing these financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at Aprit 01, 2019, the Company's date of transition to
ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustrnents made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance
sheet as at April 01, 2049 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020,

43. 2 Mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind
AS, which were considered to be material or significant by the Company:

Mandatory Exceptions:

1) Use of Estimates

Ind AS 101 prescribes that an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates
made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimates were in error.The estimates at April 01, 2019 and March 31, 2020 are consistent with those made for the
same dates in accordance with [ndian GAAP apart from the following adjustiments, where application of Indian GAAP did not require estimation:

- Fair valuation of financials instruments carried at FVTPL
- Impairment of financial assets based on the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
- Determination of present value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost

The estimates used by the Comparly to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at April 01,2019 the date of transition
to Ind AS, and as of March 31, 2020,

2) Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of

transition to Ind AS,

3) Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the exception related impairment of financial assets given in Ind AS 101. it has used reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort fo determine the credit risk at the date that financial assets were initially recognized and
compared that to the credit risk as at April 01, 2018.

Optional Exemptions availed:

1) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Company has elected to measure property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets at its Previous GAAP carrying amount and use that
Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost at the date of transition to Ind AS.

2) Leases

Ind AS 116 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 116, this assessment
should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts
and circumstances existing at the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expecied to be material,

The Company has elected to apply this exemption for such contracts / arrangements.
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43.3 Recongijliations between Ind AS and previous GAAP:
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, tatal comprehensive income and cash flows for previous periods. The following tables represent

the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

As at Ag at

Particulars Notes March 31,2020 | April 01, 2019
Share Capital 1,750.00 1,750.00
Reserves & Surplus: - -
Statutory reserve 352.17 352.17
Retained Earnings 59.17 374.43
Equity as per Indian GAAP 2,161.34 2,476.60
fmpact Due to Ind AS Adjustments divided in following categories:
Impact of processing fee on term loan 1 (1.90) (0.70)
Fresh Provision on loans and advances as per Expected Credit Loss Model 2 (341.67) (87.38)
Fair valuation of security deposits 5 {0.05) (0.00)
Fair valuation of Staff loans 7 (0.99) {0.41}
Deferral of annual fees 9 (24.16) {11.64)
?gonlsatlon of cost of fulfilment and incremental cost as per Ind AS 8 152.00 49.19
Impact of lease accounting 6 (3.70) -
Tax impact of above adjustment
Deferred Tax Liabifity on above adjustments 10 64,16 14.83
Total effect of transition to Ind AS {156.21) (36.10)
Equity as per Ind AS 2,005.14 2,440.50
Profit reconciliation for the vear ended 31 March 2020

For the year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2020
Net profit/ (Loss) after tax as reported under Ind GAAP {315.25)
Impact Due to Ind AS Adjustments divided in following categorles:
EIR impact on Ipans and advances 1&10 (1.21)
Impairment of financial assets as per IND AS 109 283 {254.29)
Fair valuation of Staff loans 7 (0.58)
Fair valuation of security deposits 4 {0.05)
Impact of lease accounting 6 (3.70}
Actuarial gain / (Loss) Reclassified to OC| 5 6.84
Deferral of annual fees 9 (12.52}
Amoirtisation of cost of fulfillment and incremental cost as per Ind AS 115 8 102.89
Deferred Tax impact on above adjustments 10 47.35
Profit and less for the year as per IND AS (430.51)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the period {4.85)
Total comprehesive income/ (loss} as reported under IND AS {435.36)

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 01, 2019 and March 31, 2020 and profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2020,

1) Effective interest rate (EIR} method -

a) EIR on Loans:Under previous GAAP, transaction costs on loan origination and the processing fees charged to customers were recognised
upfront while under Ind AS, such fees and costs are included in the nitial recognition amount of financial asset and recognised as interest income
using the effective interest method. The unamertised portion is adjusted in retained earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020.

b) EIR on Borrowings: Uinder previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred on borrowings was charged to statement of profit and loss upfront while
under Ind AS, such costs are included in the nitial recognition amount of financial asset and recogaised as interest income using the effective
interest method. The unamortised portion is adjusted in retained earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020.

2} Expected credit loss (ECL) -

a) Funded Exposure - Under previous GAAP, [oan losses and provisions were compuled basis R8I guidelines and Management estimations.
Under Ind AS, the same is required to be computed as per the impairment principles laid out in Ind AS 109 which prescribes the expected credit
fass model (ECL model) for the same. Accordingly, the difference between loan losses and provisions as computed under previcus GAAP and as
cemputed under Ind AS is adjusted in retained earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year ended 31 March 2020,

b} Non funded exposure - Under previous GAAP, no provision is recognised on loans commitments and financial guarantees, However, under Ind
AS impairment provision is recognised on undrawn commitment based on expected credit foss model prescribed under Ind AS 109. The differential
impact has been adjusted in retained earning as at date of transition and subsequently in the statement of Profit and loss.

g
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3) Trade and other receivables- Under previous GAAP, the Cempany has created provision for impairment of receivables in respect of specific
amount for incurred Iosses. Under lnd AS, impairment allowance for trade and other receivables also has been determined based on Expected
Loss model (ECL).

4) Security deposits - Under Indian GAAP, interest free security deposits given to landiords for premises rented, was recorded

as an asset, while rent was booked as an expense as per the rental agreement. Under Ind AS, interest free security deposit is required to be
measured at fair value o initial recognition. The difference between the discounted present value of the security deposit and

the actual security deposit given to the landlords is required to be recorded as prepaid rent, This prepaid rent is added to the ROV asset in line
with Ind AS 118, The interest income representing the differential between the security deposit given and the present value of the security deposit
given is recorded in such a manner that the difference between rental expense and interest income nullifies itself at the end of tenure of the
security deposit, as per Ind AS 109,

§) Remeasurement of defined benefit plan obligations - Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan
assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income
instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of tie Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

6) Leases: Under previous GAAP, a lease is classified as a finance lease or an operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
operating expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-ine basis aver the lease term, Under Ind AS, a lessee applies a single recognition
and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets and recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. At the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company
applied the transitional provision and measured lease %iabilities at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of transition to Ind AS. Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease
liabifities adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments.

7) Fair valuation of staff loans: Under previous GAAP, lcans given to staff were recorded at carrying value. Under Ind AS, staff loans are fair
valued using market rate of interest and accordingly deferred employee cost is recognised on date of initial recognition, Deferred employee cost is
amortised over the contractual period of loan as an employee benefit expenses and interest income is recognised on fair value of loans,

8) Under previous GAAP, all incremental costs are charged off to statement of profit and loss when incurred. Under IND AS, the incremental cost
of obtaining contract with customer are recongnised as an assets if the entity expects to recover those costs from future revenue.

9) Under previous GAAP, Company follows the annual fees was recongnised as an income at inception of contract, Under IND AS, the card fees
have been deferred and amortised over the one year.

10) Consequential deferred tax on all the above adjustement are taken into consideration.




Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless othenwise stated)

44  Un-redeemed Reward Points @

The Company has a reward peint program which allows card members to earn points based on spends through the cards that
can be redeemed for cash. In addition, Company has designed a Reward & Recognition pregram for sourcing credit card through
branches of ihe Holding Company. Accordingly the eligible employees of the Holding Company is rewarded with bonus points
threugh a credit in their card accounts, The liability for rewards points outstanding as at the year end and expecied to be
redeemed in the future is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation,
Movement of provision for rewards points expenses.

Particulars As At 31.03.2021 |As At 31.03.2020
Provision at the beginning of the year 42.25 29.00
Add: Addition made during the year 139,66 59.15
Less:- Amount used during the year 100.59 45.90
Less:- LInused amounts reversed during the year - -
Amount at the end of the year 81.33 42.25

45  Interchange fees paid during the vear is net of Rs, 78,68 mn on account of the input tax credit pertaining to financial year 2019-20
claimed during the year under review as per GST rules and regulations.

46  [nrespect of accounts receivables, the Company is regularly generating and dispatching customer statements on periodic
interval wherever transactions or outstanding are there. In case of disputes with regard to billing, there isa process of resolution
and adjustments are carried out on regular basis. Moreover, in respect of accounts payable, the Company has a process of
receiving regular balance confirmation from its vendors. The balances are reconciled with the balance cenfirmation received and
discrepancies, if any are accounted on regular basis. For the year end balances of Account Receivables, Account Payables and
Loans & Advantes, the management is of the opinion ihat adjustments, if any required through the above-mentioned process, will
not have any material impact on the financials of the Company.

47 Previous Years figures have been regrouped, and/ or rearanged and/ or reclassified wherever necessary t0 make them
comparable with current year's figures.

48  Schedule of Balance sheet of Systemically Important Non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company as required in terms of
Paragraph 19 of Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directicns,
2018

Sr. NO, |Particulars _As at 315t March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Liabilities side
Loans and Advances avalled by the NBFC's Amount Amount overdue Amount Amount overdue
Inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not] outstanding outstanding
pald.
a) Debenture: Secured Nil Nil Nil Nil
Unsecured 499.11 Nil Nil Nil
{other than falling within the meaning of public
deposit)
1 5] Deferred credits Ni Nl Ni NI
c} Terms Loans Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) Inter-corporate leans & borrowing Nil Nil Nil Nil
&) Commercial paper Wil Nil Nis Nil
f) Public Deposit
g) Other loans
-Cash Credit facility & Working capital term loan 2,584,865 Nil 2,803.53 Nil

2 Break-up of (1)(f} above (Outstanding public
deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but
not paid) :

@) In the form of Unsecured debentures Nil Nit Nil ) Nil

b} In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. il Nil Mil Nil

debentures where there is a shortfall in the value

of securily

¢) Other public deposits Nil Nil Nil Nil

b) Unsecured Nil Nil Nil Nil
Particulars As at 315t As at 31st March

Assets side March 2021 2020

Break-up of Loans & Advances including blils receivables {other than those Amount Amount outstanding

) Included In {4} below: outstanding
a} Secured 247.96 114.54
b) Unsecured B,526.89 4,539.86
Break-up of L eased Assets & Stock on Hire and other assets counting towards
a) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

1) Finance Lease Nil Nil
il) Operating Lease Nil Nil
4 b) Stack on hire including hire charges under sundry deblors:
1) Assets on hire Nil Nil
ii) Repossessed Assets Nil Nil
c} Other loans counting towards AFC activities
i) Loans where assels have been Nil Nit
iiy Leans other than (a) above oo N Nil

%




Notes to flnanclal statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure In Rupees In millions, untess otherwise stated)

Broak-up of Investments As at 31st As at 31st March
March 2621 2020
Currant Investment
Quoted :
i) Shares : Equity Nil Mil
: Preference Nit Nil
il} Dabentures and bonds Nil Nil
ji) Unit of mutual funds Nil Nil
iv} Governrment securities Nit Nil
v) others (please specify) Nil Nil
Unquoted
1) Shares : Equity Nil Nil
: Preference Nil Nil
1i) Debentures and bonds Nil Nil
i) Unit of mutual funds il Nil
iv) Government securities Nil Ni
v} others (please specify) Nil Nit
Long Term Investment
Quoted
i} Shares : Equity Nil Nil
: Preference Nil Nil
i) Debentures and bonds Nil Nil
iil) Unit of mutual funds Nil Nil
iv) Government securities Nil Nil
v) others (please specify) Nit Nil
Unquoted . -
iy Shares : Equity Nif Nil
; Preference Ni§ Nil
1i) Debentures and bonds Nil Nil
1i) Unit of mutual funds Nil Ni
v) Government securities Nil Nil
v} others (please specify) Nil Nil
Borrower group-wise classification of assets inanced as n {2) and {3) above:
Category As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
1) Related parties
|___i) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nit Nil
iy Companies in the same group il 0.12 il 5.65
fiiy Other related party Nil Nil Nil Wil
2) Other than related parties 24796 8,526.76 114.54 4,534.21
Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and fong term) in share and securities (both quoted and
unguoted)
As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Market value! | Book value (Netof | Market value/ | Book value (Net of
Breakup or provision) Breakup or fair provisiony
Category falr value or value or NAV
NAV
1} Related parties
1} Subsidiaries il Nit Nil Nil
1) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil Nil
iiiy Other related party Nil Nil Nil Nil
2) Other than related pariies Nil Nil Nil Nil

<% (62
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Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated}
Other Information N
Particulars 31st March 2021| 31st March 2020
Gross Non-performing Assets
8 i} Related Parties Nil Nil
iiy Other than related parties 653.63 284.63
Net Non-performing Assets {net of provision made)
i} Related Parties Nil Nil
iy Other than related parties Nil NI
Assets acquired on satisfaction of Debt Nil Nit
49 In accordance with RBI circular dated April 07, 2021, the Company shall refundf adjust ‘interest on interest' to all categories of etigible borrowers including those who
had availed of working capital facilities during the moratarium peried, imespective of whether moratorium had been fully or partially availed, or not avalled. Pursuant
to these instructions and IBA notification bearing reference No. CIB/ADVIMBR/I833 dated April 19, 2021 on methodology for caleulation of the ameunt of such
‘interest on interest’, Company has recagnised a charge of Rs. 0.90 mn in its Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021.
50 Disclosure of Restructured Accounts Not applicable
51
Assets classiflcation as per RBI norms Assets Gross carrylng loss allowances {Net carrylng amount|Provision Ditference
classification |amount as per Ind |{provisions) as required as per{between Ind AS
as per IND AS |AS required under IRACP nomrs |109 provision
IND As 109 and IRACP
norms
Performing Assels
Stage 1 7.617.30 368.01 7.249.30 335.84
d 3217
Standard Stage 2 427.50 89.57 337.93 89.57
Subtotal 8,044.80 457.58 7,5687.22 3217 425.41
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Loss Stage 3 653.53 653.53 - 653.53 -
Sub fotal of NPA 653.53 653.53 - 653.53 -
Other itern such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 5411.32 233.44 5,177.89 - 233.44
commitments, etc which are in the scope of Ind  |Stage 2 - - - - -
AS 109 but not covered under current Income Stage 3 - - - z -
Recognition, Assets ¢classification and
provisioning norms,
Subtoal 541132 233.44 5,177.89 - 233.44
Stage 1 13,028.63 601,44 12.427.19 32.17 569.27
Total Stage 2 427.50 B9.57 337.93 - 89.57
Stage 3 653.53 653.53 - 553.53 -

50[¢2
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

52 The disclosures as required under RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Additional disclosure

1 Capital
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

CRAR (%) : 19.61% 31.50%
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 12.80% 30.25%
CRAR - Tier )l Capital (%) 6.50% 1.25%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1l capital 500.00 Nil
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments Nil Nil

2  Investments

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1) Value of Investments
iy Gross Value of Investments
In India Nil Nil
Qutside India Nil Nil
1i) Provisions for Depreciation
In India il Nil
Qutside India Nit Nil
iiiy Net Value of Investments
In India Nil Nil
QOutside India Nil Nil
2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
Opening balance Nil Nil
Add ; Provisions made during the year Nil Nil
Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year Nil Nil
Closing balance Nil Nil

3 Derivatives
There is no derivatives transaction during the year.
Currency options / currency future : Not applicable
Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap - Not Applicable
Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives:- Not Applicable
Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives:- Not Applicable

4 Disclosures relating to Securitisation;- No such transaction during the year,
Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction:- Not Applicable
Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by applicable NBFCs:- Mot Applicable

5 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold: No such transaction during the vear,

6 Asset Liability Management :-

Maturity patiern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities as at 31st March 2021

upto 30/31 | Over 1 month | Over 2 month Over 3 Over @ QOver 1 year Over 3 Cver b
days upto 2 Month | upto 3 Month* month & up | month to to Jyears™ yearto 5 years Total
to 6 month** | 1 year™ years
Borrowing from banks i 780.69 400,00 - - 600.00 72276 - - 2,5803.45
Market borrowings - 1242.65 1238.59 1083.85 - - -l 4899.10 4,064.28
Receivables# 4,225.36 1,490.95 593.95 583.46 332.03 204.55 - - 7.430.30
Investmenis - - - - - - - - -

“ Credit Receivables are based on average collections in Jast 8 months.
# Receivables include Long term & short term loans and advances related to Credit card & EMI to customer. (net of NPA)

Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities as at 31st March 2020
Over 3 Over 6 Quer 3
v 30151 | Ovr 1 monln| Ovr 2| . | ot | QY61 varto5) GO | Tt
¥ P P to & month** | 1 year** 4 years ¥

Borrowing from banks 1,647.17 - - - 500.00 - 588.40 - 2,735.57
Market borrowings - - - - - - - - -
Receivables# - - 3,609.38 402.10 207.20 88.00 - - 4,306.68
investments - - “ - - - -

* Recelvables in period 2-3 months also includes recelvables for peried 0-30 days & 1-2 months which are being collected as such, however the same
will become due after 2 months as we have given moratorium to our customer as per recent guidelines issued by RBI.

*+ Credit Receivables are based on average collections in last 6 months.
# Receivables include Long term & short term loans and advances related lo Credit card, personal loan & EMI to customer. (net of NPA and advance
received from credit card hotder) '
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

i} Exposures To Real Estate Sector

Direct Exposure

Residential Mortgages -

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Companies {HFCs)

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower Nil Nil
Commercial Real Estates -

Lending secured by morigage on commercial real estates(office buildings, retail space, multipurpose il Nil
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other secured exposures -

a. Residential Nil Nil
b. Commercial Real Estates Nif Nil
Indlirect exposure

Fund based and non — fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHEB) and housing bank Nl Nil

. i) Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- Nil Nil
advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for Nil Nil
advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units Nil Nil
advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or Nil Nil
secured and unsecured advances 16 stockbrokers and guaraniees issued on behalf of stockbrokers Nil Nil
Joans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities Nil Nil
bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; il Nil
all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) Nil Nit
Total Exposure to Capital Market Nil Nil
Details of financing of parent company preducts
The company has not financed any of the product of its parent corpany during the financial year 2020-21.
Details of Single Borrower Limit {(SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC
The company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the financial year 2020-21.
Company has not sanctioned any loan against the intangible security during the financial year 2020-21.
{iiThe company has obtained registration from following ragulator apart from REBI

Particulars Registration number.

Certificate of incorporation under Companies Act 1956.

JB85990MH1994GOI081618

NBFC registration 13.01305

{ii} No penalty have been imposed by any regulator during the financial year 2020-21.

{iii) Related Party Transaction:-
For related party transaction please refer note no. 35

(iv) Remuneration to Directors
For remuneration to Directors please refer note no. 35.

( v) Net profit or loss for the periad, prior period items and changes in accounting policies.
Please refere note no 36.

{vi) The short term debt rating of the company is A1+ by CRISIL and India Rating & Research Pvt. Ltd. The long term debdt rating is AAA/s1able by India

Rating & Research Pvi. Ltd and ICRA. There is no change in the rating during FY 2020-21.

{vii) Revenue Recognition:-
For Revenue Recognition please refer nota no. 1(f).

i} Provislons and Contingencies

Break up of Provisions March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provisions for depreciation on Investment Nil Nil

Provision towards stafe 3 assels 653.53 284.48
Provision for stage 1 and stage 2 assets 691.02 387.75
Provision made towards Income tax 657.57 507.07
Other Provision and Contingencies {with details} - -
Provision for reward points B81.33 35.91
Provision for Gratuity - 0.20
Provigion for fraud 5.15 7.48
Provision for Leave encashment 17.67 21.59
Provision for Staff Incentive 0.44 21.54
Provision for Expenses 336.92 24513
Provision for CSR Expenses 1.91 3.90

Note: No provision has been made for contingencies. Refer note no 34.

i} There is no draw down from the reserve during the financial year 2020-21. PR

Cilea,
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millians, untess otherwise stated)

ifi} a) Concentration of Advances

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Total advance of largest twenty borrowers* 29.63 26.00

percentage of Advance 1o largest twenty barrowers to total advances of 0.34% 0.59%

“The Advances denotes the outstanding balances of standard twenty borrower.

iif) b)Concentration of Exposure

Particulars : March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Total Exposure to_largest twenty borrowers * 102,55 99.35

percentage of exposure o twenty largest borrowers to total advances of 1.17% 2.27%

*The exposures denotes the 1otal credit card limit against the top twenty borrower.

iii) c}Concentration of NPAs

Partlculars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounis® 5.90 276

* The exposure to NPA is only principal outstanding. The income is fully de-recongnised and limit is already blocked from these customer.

iil) d) Sector-wise NPAs

Particulars % of NPAs to Total March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Agriculture & allied activities Nil Nil Nil
MSME Nil Nil Nit
Corporate borrowers credit cards Nil Nil Nil
Services Nil Nil Nil
Unsecured personal loans Nil Nil 0.15
Auto loans Nil Nil Nil
Other personal loans credit cards 7.45% 653.53 2B84.48
Iv) Movement of NPAS

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) Nil Nil

iiy Movement of NPAs (Gross)

Opening balance 284.49 258.13

Add:- Additions during the vear 588.06 311.88

Less:-Wiritten of as Bad Debts 174.86 149.93

Less:~ Reducticns during the year 44.16 135.60

Closing balance 653,53 284.49

iii) Movement of Net NPAs

Opening balance Nil Nif

Add:- Additions during the year Nil Nil
Less:-Reductions during the year Nil Nil

Closing balance Nil Nil

iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding provisions on standard

assels)

Qpening balance 284.49 258.13
Add:-Provisions made during the year 588.06 311.88
Less:-Written off as Bad Debts 174.86 149,93
Less:-write-back of excess provisions 44.16 135.60

Closing batance £53.53 284.49

The company does not have any joint venture or overseas subsidiaries.

Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored:-

There is no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2021.

Disclosure of customer Complaints

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 2,076 57
No. of complaints received during the year 61,459 40,851
No. of complaints redressed during the year 63,241 35,632
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 284 2,078

w2




Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

16 Public disclosure on liquidity risk
i) funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (Both Deposits and Borrowings)
Name of significant counterparty Amount in Crs % of Total Deposit % of Total Llability
5 (five) refer point 3 helow for name of the counterparty. 6,103.45 |N.A. 80.72%
Note: Total liability does not include equity share capital and other equity.
iiy Top 20 large deposits :- Not Applicable
iif) Top 10 borrowings
Name of the bank Amount % to total borrowing
1CIC) prudential mutual fund 2.500,00 37.68%
Indian Bank 1,100.00 15.58%
HDFC Bank 1,000.00 15.07%
Bank of Barcda 903.45 13.62%
Hongkong & shanghai Banking Corporation 600.00 9.04%
Total 6,103.45 92.00%
iv) funding Concentration based on significant counterparty
Name of Instrument / product Amount % of Total Liability
Bank lines 2,503.45 33.11%
Commercial paper 3,600.00 47.61%
NCD 500.00 6.61%
(v) Stock Ratios:
8r, no Name of the instrument / % of total % of total % of total
product public fund Assets Liabitities
1 Commercial paper N.A. 38.01%| 47.61%
2 Non- Convertible Debentures  (N.A. M.A. N.A.
{original maturity <1 years)
3 Other Short term liabilities N.A. 26.43%| 33.11%

Note: Totat liability does not inciude equity share capital and other equity.

{vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:- Liquidity represent the ability of the company io generate sufficient cash flow to meet financial
obligation, both under normal and stressed conditions, without liquidating assels or raising funds at unfavorable terms. the operations of the company

give rise to Assets Liabilty mismatches and liquidity risks.
In order 16 manage these risks the Company has a Board approved Assels Liability Management policy in place prepared on the basis of RBI guidelines

and internal factors specific 1o our business. The policy is reviewed on annual basis.

As per our report of even date
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